
City of Swartz Creek 
AGENDA 

  Regular Council Meeting, Monday, October 26, 2020, 7:00 P.M. 
Paul D. Bueche Municipal Building, 8083 Civic Drive Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. INVOCATION:

3. ROLL CALL:

4. MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES:
4A. Council Meeting of September 28, 2020 MOTION Pg. 25 

5. APPROVE AGENDA:
5A. Proposed / Amended Agenda MOTION Pg. 1 

6. REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS:
6A. City Manager’s Report MOTION Pg. 3 
6B. Staff Reports & Meeting Minutes Pg. 30 
6C. Cross Connection Control Proposal Pg. 39 
6D. 2020 Fiscal Year Audit  Pg. 50 

7. MEETING OPENED TO THE PUBLIC:
7A. General Public Comments

8. COUNCIL BUSINESS:
8A. Swartz Creek Women’s Club G.F.W.C PROCLAMATION 
8B. Fiscal Year 2020 Audit  RESO Pg. 21 
8C. Cross Connection Control Services RESO Pg. 22 
8D. Election Pay Raise RESO Pg. 23 
8E. Litigation Closed Session RESO Pg. 23 

9. MEETING OPENED TO THE PUBLIC:

10. REMARKS BY COUNCILMEMBERS:

11. ADJOURNMENT: MOTION Pg. 24 

Next Month Calendar   
Metro Police Board: Wednesday, October 28, 2020, 10:00 a.m., Metro HQ  
Park Board:  Wednesday, November 4, 2020, 5:30 p.m., PDBMB 
Planning Commission:   Tuesday, November 10, 2020, 7:00 p.m., PDBMB (one week later) 
City Council:   Monday, November 9, 2020, 7:00 p.m., PDBMB  
Downtown Development Authority: Thursday, November 12 2020, 6:00 p.m., PDBMB  
Fire Board: Monday, November 16, 2020, 6:00 p.m., Public Safety Bldg  
ZBA Board: Wednesday, November 18, 2020, 6:00 p.m., PDBMB  
City Council:   Monday, November 23, 2020, 7:00 p.m., PDBMB  

City Council Packet 1 October 26, 2020



City of Swartz Creek Mission Statement 
The City shall provide a full range of public services in a professional and competent manner, 
assuring that the needs of our constituents are met in an effective and fiscally responsible manner, 
thus promoting a high standard of community life.  

City of Swartz Creek Values 
The City of Swartz Creek’s Mission Statement is guided by a set of values which serve as a common 
operating basis for all City employees. These values provide a common understanding of 
responsibilities and expectations that enable the City to achieve its overall mission. The City’s values 
are as follows:  

Honesty, Integrity and Fairness 
The City expects and values trust, openness, honesty and integrity in the words and actions of its 
employees. All employees, officials, and elected officials are expected to interact with each other 
openly and honestly and display ethical behavior while performing his/her job responsibilities. 
Administrators and department heads shall develop and cultivate a work environment in which 
employees feel valued and recognize that each individual is an integral component in accomplishing 
the mission of the City.  

Fiscal Responsibility  
Budget awareness is to be exercised on a continual basis. All employees are expected to be 
conscientious of and adhere to mandated budgets and spending plans.  

Public Service  
The goal of the City is to serve the public. This responsibility includes providing a wide range of 
services to the community in a timely and cost-effective manner.  

Embrace Employee Diversity and Employee Contribution, Development and Safety  
The City is an equal opportunity employer and encourages diversity in its work force, recognizing 
that each employee has unlimited potential to become a productive member of the City’s team. Each 
employee will be treated with the level of respect that will allow that individual to achieve his/her full 
potential as a contributing member of the City staff. The City also strives to provide a safe and secure 
work environment that enables employees to function at his/her peak performance level. 
Professional growth opportunities, as well as teamwork, are promoted through the sharing of ideas 
and resources. Employees are recognized for his/her dedication and commitment to excellence. 

Expect Excellence  
The City values and expects excellence from all employees. Just "doing the job" is not enough; 
rather, it is expected that employees will consistently search for more effective ways of meeting the 
City's goals.  

Respect the Dignity of Others  
Employees shall be professional and show respect to each other and to the public. 

Promote Protective Thinking and Innovative Suggestions 
Employees shall take the responsibility to look for and advocate new ways of continuously improving 
the services offered by the City. It is expected that employees will perform to the best of his/her 
abilities and shall be responsible for his/her behavior and for fulfilling the professional commitments 
they make. Administrators and department heads shall encourage proactive thinking and embrace 
innovative suggestions from employees. 

City Council Packet 2 October 26, 2020



City of Swartz Creek 
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

Regular Council Meeting of Monday, October 26, 2020 - 7:00 P.M. 

TO: Honorable Mayor, Mayor Pro-Tem & Council Members 
FROM: Adam Zettel, City Manager 
DATE: October 21, 2020 

ROUTINE BUSINESS – REVISITED ISSUES / PROJECTS 
 MICHIGAN TAX TRIBUNAL APPEALS (Update)

We have one appeal filed so far this year. It is a repeat appeal for an office at 5376
Miller Road. We may receive more since the state has extended the deadline to August
31st. An appraisal for this property has been ordered from Kevin Groves Appraisals,
Inc. I will keep the council informed on the progress of this appeal.

I am including a resolution to approve this professional service so we can proceed.

 STREETS (See Individual Category)
 2020-2023 TRAFFIC IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (TIP) (No Change in Status)

Morrish Road is slated for 2022 federal funding. Note that the total scope of the
project is around $1,050,000, with 20% being the city’s contribution.

The city has committed the match portion to this project, which is 80-20. It is unclear
what year this project will be undertaken, but we want it done subsequent to the
USDA water main work. This MAY span two construction seasons. We have put
the engineers on notice regarding our desire to widen Paul Fortino to the north so
that a left turn lane may be added. This will occur whether or not the townhome
project proceeds.

 STREET PROJECT UPDATES (Update)
This is a standing section of the report on the status of streets as it relates to our
dedicated levy, 20 year plan, ongoing projects, state funding, and committee work.
Information from previous reports can be found in prior city council packets.

The segment in Heritage Village has had the base coat installed. The final cap of 
asphalt will be placed at about the same time as the Village streets. This could 
start as early as Sunday.

Chelmsford and Oakview (to Seymour) will be completed next year.

The city accepted the low bid by Glaeser Dawes for 2020 and 2021 work projects,
including our street reconstruction projects.  This is the company that completed
the first three phases of the street/water main reconstruction projects in the city
since 2017.

Lighting contracts with Consumers Energy have been approved.

City Council Packet 3 October 26, 2020



Note that the street work is tied to the USDA projects as well.  
 

 WATER – SEWER ISSUES PENDING (See Individual Category) 
 SEWER REHABILITATION PROGRAM (No Change in Status) 

Work is complete on the sewer collectors on the west end of downtown (Fairchild, 
McLain, Ingalls, Brady, Hayes, and Holland).  
 
We will also be inspecting and cleaning areas of high fat, oil, and grease 
concentration in the system, such as Elms and Miller. We will be able to ascertain 
if we have any restaurant grease trap maintenance issues/enforcement to contend 
with.  
 
We are still working to geo-locate sewer lines, manholes, and some services so we 
can map them and track maintenance data on GIS. The Genesee County Drain 
Commission has verbally committed to reimbursing the city for some of the work 
related to water and sewer, since they plan to use it from time to time. I do not have 
a figure at this time, but I expect it to be half of what is related to sanitary sewer and 
water line mapping.  
 
Note that the most recent inspections are PACP compliant (Pipeline Assessment 
Certification Program). These inspections provide a GIS based video, along with 
standard pipe and maintenance scoring for use by state agencies and our 
assessment management planning efforts. 
 

 SEWER CAPACITY INITIATIVE (No Change in Status) 
The scope of work is indeed smaller than originally thought. This means that the 
excavation and piping needs are smaller, as is the impact on property owners. 
Engineering services have been approved. Prior to commencing in full, we hope to 
acquire permanent easements for the run of the new line. We will be working with 
Springbrook and the Masonic Lodge. I will keep the council informed.  
 
The previous report follows: 
 
ROWE has a potential solution for the district three capacity problem. They 
recommend a by-pass of specific portions of the collection system that function as 
a choke point through the installation of a larger capacity sewer line. This will require 
a sizable construction effort, approaching $500,000. It will also require cooperation 
with Springbrook Home Owners Association, the United Methodist Church, and the 
Masonic Lodge. I am hopeful all those property owners will be agreeable and have 
been communicating with all three groups, with positive feedback. 
 
Rowe has begun their design. We would like to perform this work in 2021. Once 
crews can begin work, they will survey the area and prepare engineering 
documents that will get us to bid.  
 
Concerning inflow and infiltration (I&I), the county met with communities about the 
current status and long term solutions for the sanitary sewer systems. This is 
something we have been actively reducing for years through manhole water 

City Council Packet 4 October 26, 2020



proofing and pipe lining. However, there are still issues, and the higher levels of 
government are pushing hard to reduce I&I.  

 
In pursuing the ‘general permit’ that is issued by EGLE, the county will be mandating 
targets for I&I reduction. We do not know what this will look like for our community 
since many things come into play, including the current wet weather ratio, the ability 
of surface water management to effectively remove water from problem areas, and 
the capacity of the county interceptor. A plan is expected to be crafted by 2022. I 
will keep the council informed.  
 

 WATER MAIN REPLACEMENT - USDA (Update) 
Work is complete on:  
 
Oakview from Winston to Daval (Complete) 
Winston from Chesterfield to Oakview (Complete) 
Oxford Court (Complete) 
 
Work is underway on Miller Road, from Tallmadge to Dye. 
 
Bristol from Elms to Miller will commence later in the year. 
 
We have sent notice to all impacted properties of record.  
 
UPDATE: MAIN ON CHELMSFORD, FROM WINSTON TO DAVAL, IS NOT 
BEING REPLACED BECAUSE IT WAS REPLACED IN 2000. 
 
Chelmsford and Oakview (to Seymour) will be completed next year, along with the 
remainder of the water main work, which will include Morrish Road from Fortino to 
I-69 and Miller from Raubinger to Elms. 
 
Prior system report findings follow: 
 
The Genesee County Drain Commission - Water and Waste Services Division 
Water Master Plan, indicates they are considering a northern loop to provide 
redundancy and stability to the system. This is good news since Gaines and Clayton 
Township rely on the overstressed Miller line.  There is currently not any cost or 
participation information available. I will keep the council informed.  
 
The city has been working with the county to abandon the Dye Road water main in 
the vicinity of the rail line. Note that we are holding this action pending the master 
plan review. This line is prone to breaks, which can be very costly and dangerous 
near the rail spur.  The intention would be to connect our customers to the other 
side of the street, onto the county line. It appears the transition cost would be about 
$25,000. We will work with the county on this matter and report back on our findings. 
 

 UTILITY BILL PENALTIES, INTEREST, AND TURN OFFS (Update) 
As verbalized at the October 10 meeting, we have continued to refrain from water 
shut offs due to non-payment, despite the lifting of the executive order that compels 

City Council Packet 5 October 26, 2020



this practice. However, it is apparent that many folks are refraining from payments 
simply because it is a penalty and interest free prospect for the time being.  
 
This raises the potential for issues of repayment down the road by renters, whose 
balances cannot be assessed. It also is a concern for any customer that may permit 
their balance to become substantial at the onset of applicable penalties and interest, 
just as it is with an interest limited free credit card promotion.  
 
Moving forward, we will monitor the state legislation on the matter, if any, to see 
what we are obligated to do as it relates to unpaid utility bills. If no such mandates 
exist, we will likely look to implement our standard penalties and interest. Our plan 
would be to do so only after advance notice to those with existing balances and the 
general public. Subsequent to this action, we will reengage shut offs on a more 
lenient timeline that will enable payment plans beyond what is normally customary.  
 
Again, we understand that there were allowances made to overcome hardships, so 
we do not wish to financially punish folks or take unreasonable action on collections 
or shut offs. However, we do need to move forward sooner or later. Further down 
the road, we shall need to consider if the outstanding balances will need to go on 
the July 2021 tax assessment roll, or if some delay will be necessary. We will keep 
the council informed.  
 

 HERITAGE VACANT LOTS (No Change in Status) 
The last of the lots acquired prior to the special assessment have been sold. We 
approved permits for single family homes on September 30th. The city also has two 
more lots that were acquired through the tax reversion process.   
 

 NEWSLETTER (Update) 
The October newsletter should be out!  
 

 CONSTRUCTION & DEVELOPMENT UPDATE (See Individual Category) 
This will be a standing section of the report that provides a consolidated list for a brief 
status on public and private construction/developmental projects in the city. 

 
1. The city submitted another application for DNR Trust funds for 2021 

construction of the Genesee Valley Trail. The MDOT grant is conditionally 
awarded. We seek to apply again for the Trust fund grant and combine this with 
the Safe Routes to School initiative for 2021 construction.  

2. The raceway has surrendered its 2020 race days due to a lack of beneficial 
state statutory changes. They intend to use the site for thoroughbred horse 
racing. There is currently some pending legislation that could make this a 
reality, and they are optimistic. They held an equipment auction in late June.  

3. Communities First has a purchase option for Mary Crapo. The zoning, site 
plan, and PILOT for the 40 unit building conversion have been approved by the 
city. The land purchase and state approvals are still pending. The park board 
recommends against the lease unless terms are dramatically improved to allow 
flexible public use. They have until 2/1/21 to make the purchase. 

4. The school bond passed and many improvements are expected in 2020 
throughout the district. Total investment for this effort will exceed $50 million 

City Council Packet 6 October 26, 2020



over two to three years. Work has commenced on Syring and Elms School, as 
well as the high school athletic complex. Plans are being submitted for the 
Middle School The schools in the city are in a rigorous state of improvement at 
the moment. It also appears that the school will be adding a walking path on 
their high school campus that should be integrated with other pedestrian 
features.  

5. Street repair in 2020 is to include part of Chelmsford, the remainder of 
Winston, Oakview east of Daval, and Oxford Ct. We will be completing the 
remainder of Chelmsford and Oakview to Seymour in 2021. The city also has 
grants and loans for about $5 million in water main work to occur between 
2020 and 2022. COVID 19 may put a stop to some or all work efforts. 

6. The Applecreek Station development of 48 townhomes is seeking final review 
by the county. These units range in size from 1,389 to 1,630 square feet, with 
garages. Construction will occur on vacant land in the back of the development, 
by Springbrook Colony. Site engineering plans have just been submitted by the 
owner. Rents are expected to be about $1.00 per square foot (~ $1,600 a 
month) which matches rents in Winchester Village. This project is on hold 
pending the sewer relief project. 

7. The Brewer Condo Project was given site plan approval and tentative 
purchase agreement approval (July 22, 2019). This includes 15 townhome 
condos off Morrish Road in downtown. They are approximately 1,750 square 
feet, with two car garages and basements. A drainage solution has just been 
approved by the county. The developer indicates they may be able to start 
soon. They will be working to finalize the master deed and condominium 
documents so that the purchase agreement can be executed and the property 
transferred. The resolutions and agreement still enable this activity, despite the 
delay. If council members wish to revisit this, please let the council know. 
Otherwise, we hope to have the transfer and start of construction occur this fall. 

8. The next Springbrook East phase is under construction. They have pulled 
their first home permit.  

 
 TRAILS (Update) 

After added effort, GM has responded and is communicating as needed through their 
governmental liaison. They have also commissioned a traffic study to look at the 
situation. It is unclear if this is a sincere effort to work the problem and cooperate or if 
it is a justification for their initial reaction that trails are dangerous. Hopefully, we can 
meet with them and work something out that works for all parties.  
 
In the meantime, we continue to negotiate easements with three other property owners. 
We are concurrently pursuing appraisals for these three easement requests, as well 
as General Motors. This is a requirement of the condemnation process. Hopefully, this 
will not be necessary, but we must maintain our timeline for improvements. I will keep 
the council informed.  
 
In other news, we resubmitted our DNR grant and are hoping for a positive outcome.  
 
The MDOT grant is still awarded and awaiting use. We hope to get all easements and 
the DNR funding with time to bid this winter and construct in 2021. It is unclear what 
the match will be at this point, but it will be at least $200,000 by most accounts.   

City Council Packet 7 October 26, 2020



 
 REDEVELOPMENT READY COMMUNITIES (No Change of Status) 

There is a buyer for the Lovegrove Building. We met with them onsite. Though they 
have not yet closed on the property, it appears that they will soon. They have plans for 
relatively robust maintenance and upgrades at the property, and they would like to 
cooperate on parking, site access, and downtown events.  
 
Though it does not appear they have any immediate plans to engage in a larger scale 
transformative project, I do believe they have some good users coming to the site and 
will be investing sufficient resources to bring the building up to functional expectations. 
I think this is a good step forward. 
 
We are still able to offer our RRC incentives. We will continue to work with property 
owners to educate and encourage them to consider the benefits of property 
enhancement and the incentives that can be leveraged to that end.  
 
I have had conversations with them and they are entertaining the possibility of 
transforming the property in accordance with the Request for Proposals. Either way, 
we will be moving forward, and I am confident they will act as positive change agents 
for the building and downtown! 
 

 TAX REVERTED PROPERTY USE (No Change of Status) 
I am seeking release from the buyers of tax reverted property on Wade. I am doing so 
because the council granted sale approval over one year ago, but the purchase 
agreements remain unsigned after numerous requests. We can look to reoffer the 
properties or allow time to mature the prospects more.  
 

 8002 MILLER (Update) 
The city council extended the forbearance period through September 30th (the next 
payment will be to cover October, due October 1). The outstanding balance prior to 
forbearance was the month of March and half of February’s payment (totaling $3,000 
without penalties or interest. As of writing, we have received $400 dollars. There has 
not been any payment made toward October. However, the tenant has been awarded 
a $10,000 grant from the county (CARES Act funding). This has been affirmed by the 
county to be remitted any day now.  
 
The tenant has been responding to our inquiries and communicative. I have reached 
out to ascertain what their expectations are as we continue through COVID and the 
post-COVID world. Obviously, the current situation, even with CARES support, is not 
working. 
 
While we still wish to see the property and business thrive, sustainable rents above 
~$50 a month (as observed between March and October), are required.   
 
The previous report (July 27, 2020) contains details of the lease and circumstances 
regarding the options.  
 

 SCHOOL FACILITY PROPOSAL (No Change in Status) 

City Council Packet 8 October 26, 2020



The water tower antennae is up. The school is also continuing with improvements 
district-wide. Athletic facility enhancements are underway. There are also big changes 
proposed to the middle school and high school grounds, including new parking/drop off 
arrangements and a trail link. The elementary schools in the city will see additional 
building and grounds improvements. Note that Elms will have a secondary entrance off 
an outlot to Elms Road.  
 
One issue that has presented itself is the Residential Equivalent Unit (water and sewer 
connection and quarterly use factor) charges for Syring. Records indicate that this is a 
2 unit building (which is very low for a school). The new county audit places this at 30 
units, post construction. This results in additional charges of $56,000 to be paid by the 
school to the county and $84,000 to the city.  
 
We have invoiced the school accordingly. However, I have apprehensions about this 
large connection fee for a building that has been previously permitted on the system 
since its construction. We are checking the records to see if we can determine the 
original unit factor/connection charge amount for the school. If nothing can be found, 
we may get a request for relief from the school district. I will keep the council informed. 
 

 BREWER TOWNHOMES (No Change in Status) 
County approvals have been granted for storm water. The developer now indicates 
they may be able to start soon. They will be working to finalize the master deed and 
condominium documents so that the purchase agreement can be executed and the 
property transferred. The resolutions and agreement still enable this activity, despite 
the delay. If council members wish to revisit this, please let the council know. 
Otherwise, we hope to have the transfer and start construction occur this fall. 
 

 CDBG (Update) 
We have released bids for the purchase of decorative street signs. This project includes 
the purchase and installation of decorative street signs throughout the downtown area. 
We hope to proceed as soon as orders can be made. The city council will have the 
final approval of any award. 
 
We also have the next three year CDBG cycle planning phase upon us. We will post a 
notice for a public needs hearing in November. This is the first step to using CDBG 
funds for the next cycle, whether it is on senior services, infrastructure projects, or other 
purposes.  The needs hearing will seek comment on prior and potential projects. Using 
this information, we will submit a pre-application packet to the Genesee County 
Metropolitan Planning Commission. 
 
The hearing should be November 9th. The amount of funding available for the 2022-
2024 cycle is $42,025. 
 

 SAFE ROUTES TO SCHOOL (No Change of Status) 
A conditional award has been made by the MDOT! We are very happy to announce a 
grant for another $600,000+ for trails and walkways in the community! This will enable 
installation of paths near the middle school, Elms, and Syring for student safety.  
 

City Council Packet 9 October 26, 2020



These connections will also enhance our trail network. Andy is working on easements 
at the moment, and we are getting some initial memorandums of understanding 
regarding the use of private property. We anticipate approving a proposal for 
engineering this fall so we can construct in 2022. This was a year later than anticipated, 
but we have observed delays in the process for some months that made this likely.  
 

 GIS MAPS (No Change of Status) 
Staff is now able to edit the maps and accompanying data fields for our GIS system. 
This includes underground water, sewer, and storm facilities. We are also mapping 
basic street data. This system is going to be accessible by our staff anywhere in the 
city by mobile device and will enable locational support, as well as important 
maintenance and related data fields related to infrastructure.  
 
We are also exploring the use of work order applications with GIS that will save some 
time and better integrate data analytics for our infrastructure. Some of these features 
may be viewable by the public as well once we are established.  
 

 SHARED SERVICES AGREEMENT-MUNDY TOWNSHIP (No Change of Status) 
Mundy’s park is substantially complete and they intend to be open in December. We 
have a draft agreement prepared that the staff of the city and township are working on 
that relates to the level of service and terms for park maintenance by city staff.  Once 
we believe we have a suitable agreement, the city council and township board will then 
review our progress and make a determination concerning implementation. This 
agreement is modeled after our shared building service agreement.  
 
I expect to have this agreement before the council in October or early November. 
Overall, the initial impact will not be significant. We expect to provide about 10 hours a 
week of seasonal or part-time labor and 4 hours of full time (overtime), with a single 
pickup truck for the season, May through November. We will likely provide 6-10 hours 
of part time labor and truck December through April. Services will initially be limited to 
waste collection and inspection in the summer. We expect to provide those services 
on a limited basis during the winter, along with the potential for limited parking lot 
snow/ice removal.  
 
The previous report follows: 
 
Mundy Township is very interested in utilizing our existing labor and equipment 
resources to support their new park facility on Hill Road. We have come to verbal terms 
with each other regarding expectations. I have also ensured we have the capacity and 
willingness from the DPW Director and union steward that represents the crew that will 
be doing the work. The city Treasurer is also equipped to track, report, and invoice 
such services by virtue of extending a system of accounting that we use to enable our 
staff to maintain the park and ride.  
 
Moving forward, I expect to deliver a short shared services agreement that will enable 
city labor and equipment to be used to maintain the Mundy Township park. Again, this 
agreement will resemble the MDOT park-and-ride service expectation, while taking the 
form of the shared service agreement we have with Mundy Township for building 
services. Conceptually, I think this is a great idea to create efficiency for the township 

City Council Packet 10 October 26, 2020



and more capacity for the city, while ensuring costs are fairly and appropriately 
covered. The working plan appears to support the concept in terms of its functionality 
and demand on our resources.  
 

 DISC GOLF (No Change of Status) 
A parking area with two drives has been installed. Site grading, including the extension 
of the eastern berm continues. In addition, Woodside Builders has donated some 
culverts for drain crossings. Things are coming together! However, no fundraiser has 
been done this year, so there are no baskets or pads.  
 
The park board is considering the purchase of the baskets and pads using budgeted 
funds. This might enable us to hit the ground running in 2021. The difficulty comes from 
the usage of the site for water main construction staging. While Glaeser Dawes is doing 
a great service in providing this, they have a heavy footprint there and will continue to 
do so most of the 2021 warm months. This makes recreational use problematic. We 
will work with GD and the volunteers to see what options we have this winter.  
 

 WELL-HEAD SITE (No Change of Status) 
The potential user is still considering the city property. If they proceed, they will conduct 
a full title search, partial survey, and environmental analysis. They agree to share all 
of their findings in exchange for access. If there is still interest, they will need to secure 
zoning approval from Vernon Township in Shiawassee County. They will look to seek 
a letter of agreement with the city at some point during this process.  
 
With that said, no commitments have been made. The city council will still have ample 
opportunity to consider a tenant after a site design is completed and findings regarding 
water rights impact, zoning, and finance are considered. The previous report follows: 
 
For some time, we have known that our well-head in Shiawassee County is of minimal 
value. A sale seems unlikely due to its circumstances. If Project Tim were a go, things 
would be different. However, that appears unlikely. In the meantime, the old pump 
house and fencing should probably be removed to make sure there are no risk factors 
left on the site.  
 
As chance would have it, a company that provides high speed internet is interested in 
using this site for the purpose of installing a 25’ x 28’ enclosure with a satellite 
transmitter for area residents. They are offering to pay $500/monthly to do so. They 
would also incur other incidental costs, including real and personal taxes that may be 
incurred. I am including their letter and concept plans. I indicated that the council may 
have an interest.   
 
This is up for discussion at the meeting [January 13, 2020]. The upside is income. The 
downside is that it might encumber the site with a user that could compromise a future 
use. Even so, we could probably mitigate this.  
 

 MARY CRAPO (No Change of Status) 
The zoning, site plan, and PILOT have been approved for the 40 units of senior housing 
within the original building. The land sale is still pending by the school, and the state 
will be considering funding.  

City Council Packet 11 October 26, 2020



 
The developer offered a lease to the city, but this matter has stalled. While the 
maintenance and improvement of a recreational area in downtown has many intrinsic 
benefits, there are costs and limits as indicated in the lease mark up.  I included this in 
the April 13th packet for discussion. In concept, a long term lease can make much 
sense to preserve this feature and make enhancements. However, the developer 
limited options for use (ballfield) and created some uncertainty with the limits on lease 
rights. There is also the ever-present matter of providing resources to maintain such a 
feature.  
 
So, the real issue is, do we seek a ballfield area to be held in public trust (at the city’s 
cost), or do we enable the developer to own it for their use. The park board considered 
this matter at their May and June meetings (with school administration input at the June 
meeting). There was no interest in leasing the park for a ballpark only. This appears to 
reflect a requirement that the owners maintain the ballfield for the school or pay the 
school to relocate it. If this is the case, they might see the city as a means to uphold 
their obligations.  
 
The board resolved to reject the lease option as written at the May meeting and 
affirmed this stance in June. There is still a degree of interest for a lease if the city could 
maintain it as total green space or if the city had the ability to choose the recreational 
use.  
 
Currently, Communities First feels the ballfield must be retained as the exclusive use 
of the site because that is what they feel the community desires. It appears 
Communities First will owe the school district $70,000 if the ball field is removed. I 
communicated the findings of the park board to Communities First. They have until 
2/1/21 to make the purchase. 

 
 COVID 19 (Update) 

The executive powers of the Michigan Governor have been limited in a recent Michigan 
Supreme Court ruling. However, we are already seeing supplemental legislations and 
orders from various state regulatory agencies that appear to replace features of the 
current executive orders. At best, the ability to regulate and enforce COVID provisions 
is quickly becoming a vague legal realm, one that contains much political and 
ideological strife.  
 
Our position is to maintain the status quo for the time being. This means that all of the 
City of Swartz Creek protocols, policies, and practices shall remain in place for our 
employees, officials, and customers until further notice. We expect to have additional 
guidance on our best practice health practices, legal expectations, and liability risks 
over the next two to three weeks that will guide our position as it relates to practical 
and legal COVID measures. In the meantime, a continuation provides a degree of 
consistency and predictability with expectations of staff and visitors. This is especially 
true with election protocols, which are quite specific and rigorous.  
 
As of writing, there is approved state legislation that enables our public bodies to meet 
virtually through the calendar year. After January 1, 2021, there are allowances for 
future state of emergencies, individual medical exemptions, and military service that 

City Council Packet 12 October 26, 2020



will be allowed virtually. Given the circumstances, we believe we can meet in the city 
offices for the time being.  
 
Moving forward, we are looking to update the audio-visual capabilities for the city 
council chambers to be able to stream meeting audio and video to the public. Updates 
will also enable presentation and capture of a variety of other media types that can be 
presented within the chambers and remotely.  
 
As always, this is a dynamic process that our staff shall monitor closely. While it may 
be an inconvenience to some or appear unnecessary, our position is one of caution for 
the general public and the city’s exposure to risk from numerous positions. The 
previous report follows: 
 
A recent executive order enables indoor events to be held in accordance with a density 
calculation instead of a numerical limit of 10. This will enable us to hold no more than 
28 participants in the city council chambers for our public meetings. Barring an 
expectation of attendance that exceeds this, we shall be holding all of our public 
meetings in the council chambers moving forward. The previous report follows: 
 
The amended opening plan is on the city website. I can happily report that our work 
operations and the overall function of the community appears to be stable and 
adequate, continues despite some remaining restrictions. At this point, we carefully 
watch the national and state trends in COVID impacts, as well as the resulting policy. 
Note that we do not expect to go back to ‘normal’ operations any time soon.  
 
Moving forward we can expect a number of direct and indirect pressures and changes 
that will impact our community and our city operations. Among those, I expect limits on 
our staff production, especially should the virus directly impact employees. We are 
utilizing remote (home) work operations, flexible scheduling, single occupancy vehicles 
(DPW), cancellation of home appointments, closure of the municipal office/park 
facilities, and related actions. The public will feel the impact of the office and park limits, 
as well as the ability of staff to freely and openly engage in routine business. This will 
make life slow down, plain and simple.  
 
We can expect revenue hits. The economy is taking a remarkable beating. This will 
result in hardships for the residents, businesses, and other service providers. We can 
expect reduced state general revenue sharing, Act 51 street revenues sharing, and 
property values. We can also expect late utility/tax payments, foreclosures, and 
building activities. We are already placing a more critical eye on our expenses.  

 
 8067 MILLER ROAD (Update) 

We have acquired the property and taken over maintenance and upkeep. I am holding 
off on the survey and any interior finishing, pending the plan for use of the Lovegrove 
Building. As of writing, it appears there is no desire to use this property to enhance the 
Lovegrove investments, beyond the need for a rear yard easement to Hayes Street.  
 
With that said, I recommend that the city carve out the easement and sell the property 
with restrictions on the deed (residential only, no rentals, first right of refusal for city, 
etc.). This should be done once improvements are made or underway for the 

City Council Packet 13 October 26, 2020



Lovegrove building. Note that it is still possible to hold the building for future public use 
(museum, visitor center/restrooms, chamber building, etc.). IF THIS IS DESIRED, 
PLEASE SHARE YOUR OPINION WITH THE COUNCIL! We will not likely get another 
shot at this.  
 

 BLACK LIVES MATTER (No Change of Status) 
I met with the BLM affiliated group via Zoom since our last city council meeting (Mr. 
Farmer was also in attendance).  The group has a stated policy position that they 
shared. They acknowledged that much of this agenda is not under our local purview. 
Many of the issues noted involved prosecutions, warrants, ICE, police tactics, and 
police equipment.  
 
We engaged and were able to report that many of their desires are already met by 
Metro PD (officer business cards & psychological exams among others), some we 
could not speak to due to jurisdiction, and some we could not speak to due to expertise 
level. I suggested that they pursue change with other venues that have authority over 
respective features of prosecution & law enforcement.   
 
Since then, the MML has been running a series of webinars on policing and community 
engagement. I have been sharing the webinars with the city council.  It is prudent to 
become aware of the pressure on police departments, how some departments are 
handling this, and the desire to evolve police work (and related social work) moving 
forward.  
 

 CARES FUNDING (No Change of Status) 
We have learned that our initial reimbursement request for DPW staff, which was a 
grey area, is probably not fundable. We have received an allocation, but we will likely 
refuse this based upon the evolving expectations. It is the right thing to do.  
 
We have also learned that the funds for payroll reimbursement of first responders are 
insufficient to reimburse all agencies fully. Metro has already received a prorated 
amount of over $100,000. Their board is awaiting the final reimbursement and 
ascertaining other conditions before deciding what to do with those proceeds (pension 
support was at the top of the list). We are still waiting to hear if the fire department will 
be reimbursed. There is also a chance that the funding source could be increased.  
 
The previous report follows: 
 
We have fantastic news! Public Act 144 of 2020 was signed into law on July 31, 2020. 
This state law enables additional governmental units to now qualify for the First 
Responder Hazard Pay Premiums Program and the Public Safety and Public Health 
Payroll Reimbursement Program. Metro PD and SCAFD can now apply for payroll 
reimbursement for wages spent for the qualifying period. They were previously unable 
to do so. If successful, we can expect to get a refund from those agencies. This will be 
a big deal for us financially. Keep in mind that the expectation is that we shall maintain 
any such proceeds for future use when the inevitable revenue sharing cuts hit.  
 
In addition to this outlet, we did submit payroll reimbursement for qualifying activities 
of our DPW staff. This appears to be a grey area for some, but we wish to get our tax 

City Council Packet 14 October 26, 2020



dollars back to the greatest extend possible. Deanna and her staff worked very 
diligently to get a submission into the state prior to the deadline of July 17th. We expect 
nothing, but we hope to get about $25,000.  
 

 MASTER PLAN UPDATE (No Change of Status) 
The city master plan was last updated in 2016 and is expected to be revisited every 
five years. This provision could be as simple as accepting the plan as current and valid, 
or it could be as extensive as a complete rewrite. In speaking with the Mayor, it appears 
to be prudent to start this process later this year or the beginning of 2021. This will 
enable the new city council (November election) to consider the scale of the review 
based upon the post-election environment.  

 ORV ORDINANCE (No Change of Status) 
Per guidance from the city council, I am working with the attorney to draft an ordinance 
that would enable enclosed ORV’s on select streets (shoulders or 25 mph speed limits 
and under) under select circumstances (operator, ORV features, etc). When this is 
ready for review, we shall bring it to the council for discussion.  
 

 RACEWAY LEGISLATION SUPPORT LETTER (Update) 
Based upon the input by Senator Ananich, we will await a later version of the bill prior 
to acting. It is apparent that there are four or more subcommittee versions that replace 
the public version which I included in the October 10 packet. I expect this to be on an 
agenda in November. The previous report follows: 
 
Senate Bill 661 continues to have life in the senate. There is a hope and expectation 
that the bill will become law in calendar year 2020. I am including the draft bill as passed 
by the senate in the council packet. Though changes are likely, the bill would enable 
Sports Creek raceway to engage in historical wagering, a form of wagering on prior 
horse races (disguised against human or AI interpretation). The owners of the track 
believe that such wagering would make the facility economically viable when combined 
with live thoroughbred horse racing.  
 
They owner is requesting a resolution of support from the city council for this legislation. 
They would like to use the existing facility for a use that reflects its intend and practical 
attributes. Doing so would certainly eliminate a depreciating, even blighting feature of 
our community. It MIGHT add some additional resources through additional property 
investment and the potential for ‘breakage’ tax revenues to the city as derived from the 
historical wagering.  
 
Even during its hayday, the facility did not have a remarkable impact on the rest of the 
local economy (for good or ill). However, the site was maintained, paid its fair share of 
taxes, and had some economic impacts that were noted by local businesses. The new 
owner is proving to be an open and sincere communicator that has a willingness to 
cooperate with the community and invest. While the site has other obvious 
opportunities given its location and size, the current approvals, buildings, and 
ownership lean towards a return to racing.  
 

City Council Packet 15 October 26, 2020



This is clearly a council decision. However, circumstances and recent council and 
community action indicate that this is still the preferred course. I am including the 
resolution for approval.  

 
 OTHER COMMUNICATIONS & HAPPENINGS (See Individual Category) 

 
 MONTHLY REPORTS (Update) 

There are some routine reports included for your information.  
 

 BOARDS & COMMISSIONS (See Individual Category)  
 PLANNING COMMISSION (Update) 

The Planning Commission conditionally approved a site plan at their meeting on 
October 13th. The medical office at 7550 Miller Road was approved for expansion. 
In addition to the building expansion, the parking areas and landscaping will be 
improved. The office is to be the future home of Dr. Sharman.  
 
The next meeting is scheduled for November 3rd, however, due to the election the 
November meeting will be on the 10th. Due to some confusion over a requirement 
for curbing versus parking blocks, the 7550 Miller site plan is expected to be 
revisited on the 10th.   
 

 DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (Update) 
The DDA did not meet in October. The next meeting is scheduled for November 
12th. 
 

 ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (No Change of Status) 
The ZBA did not have a March meeting due to COVID 19 mitigation. Their annual 
meeting was held on September 16th. The officers from last year were appointed 
for the current year, including Mr. Packer as Chair, Mr. Plumb as Vice-Chair, and 
Mr. Smith as Secretary. The ZBA engaged in standard training. 
 

 PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION (No Change of Status) 
The Park Board met in Abrams Park on October 7th. See the attached minutes for 
details. In short, the Crapo structure donation is on hold because the family is not 
committed to it. The city is likely to enhance forestry operations by working with an 
arborist more closely as we continue with tree trimming/removal/planting services. 
Disc golf is up in the air for 2021 due to the need to use the site for water main 
construction staging and trail construction.  
 
The next meeting is slated for November 3rd at city hall.  
 

 BOARD OF REVIEW (No Change of Status) 
Board of Review was July 21 at 9:00 a.m.  They have the authority to review 
principle residency exemptions, poverty exemptions, veteran exemptions and 
errors. Due to COVID, folks can also protest their assessment like they can in 
March.   
 
The BoR had 6 people attend.  Two people requested PREs, which were 
granted.  Four people protested their assessment or taxable value; all were denied 

City Council Packet 16 October 26, 2020



except one that was a recapping issue.  They also had one PRE request by letter 
that was granted. 

 
 CLERK’S OFFICE/ELECTION UPDATE (Update) 

As of 10/21/20 we have mailed out 1898 absentee ballots and have received 1380 
ballots back.  For the November 3rd election we have approximately 38% of our 
registered voters voting absentee.   
 

 DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY SERVICES/ENGINEERING UPDATE (Update) 
Hydrant flushing has commenced. The crew is engaging more rigorous COVID 
protocols based upon circumstances.  Equipment is being readied for winter 
maintenance, and crews will soon be addressing park winterization and the wrapping 
up of summer services like wood chipping.   
 

 TREASURER UPDATE (Update) 
Staff has reviewed the State Letter 2020-3 on Single Audit Reporting, gathered 
information for Mundy Township park joint service proposal, worked with Jody to 
process credit balance accounts in utility billing, attended webinar on CARES Act 
UnCue System to be used for CARES Act reporting requirements, filed first quarterly 
CARES Act quarterly spending report with the State of Michigan, and developed a 
revised office work schedule for the remainder of the calendar year in an effort to 
keep staff healthy and provide uninterrupted service to our residents during this time 
of increasing Covide-19 cases. Routine duties were performed including but not 
limited to writing journal entries, processing tax distributions, bank wires, review of 
accounts payable invoices, review of payroll remittance payments, supervisory 
functions and other financial matters impacting the city. 

 
NEW BUSINESS / PROJECTED ISSUES & PROJECTS 
 
 AMERICAN TOWER (Business Item) 

We have received a request to modify the lease from the lessee for the 
communications tower on Elms Road (east side, north of the Swartz Creek). American 
Tower operates the tower on behalf of the tele-communications users that occupy it. 
This lease has recently been amended to make the arrangement sustainable for the 
modern industry. This included a substantial lump-sum payment to the city in order to 
extend this lease.  
 
Currently, they are seeking to amend the escalators (automatic rent increases) to 10% 
every 5 years instead of 20% every 5 years. In exchange for this, they offer to 
guarantee 10 years of lease payments, even if the tower is vacated. Based upon our 
experience in Elms Park and the advent of 5G, this is no small thing.  
 
Deanna calculates the present cash value of this change to be $22,966. It is this figure 
that we would be exchanging for a decade of guaranteed payments. There is no way 
to accurately speculate demand for this site, but it is clear there is risk to assuring 
payments. The Elms Park site vacancy and rent reduction is evidence of this. Given 
the current rate of inflation, a 10% escalator makes sense in exchange for mitigating 
this risk.  

City Council Packet 17 October 26, 2020



 
As of writing, I do not have a legal instrument to proceed with the change. However, I 
wish to keep the city council in the loop of what is being requested. After consideration 
of the industry drop in demand for towers, current inflation, and the lease history, I 
believe this is a reasonable request. I would like to hear from council members.  
 

 2020 FISCAL YEAR AUDIT (Business Item) 
Copies of the Fiscal Year 2020 audit are included with the packet. Findings for the 
city’s processes and fiscal performance are outstanding and include an ‘unmodified’ 
opinion. This means that the city is maintaining solid practices related to our 
processes, accuracy, checks/balances, and security.   
 
In addition, our funds continue to meet expectations related to maintaining positive 
operational cash flows and fund balances. However, we proceed with caution at 
present and into the next fiscal year due to uncertainties with the general economic 
outlook, COVID 19, and the state capacity to fund revenue sharing.   
 
There is a lot of information in the audit so do not hesitate to ask or note questions. 
The auditors will be joining by Zoom to provide their formal presentation on October 
26th. In addition to covering our internal processes, controls, and reporting, the 
auditors shall cover our revenues, expenses, short/long term obligations, 
pension/OPEB liabilities, and the outlook moving forward. Bring questions and a high 
level of scrutiny.  
 

 CROSS CONNECTION CONTROL PROGRAM PROPOSAL (Business Item) 
As the Council is aware, we have to maintain a Cross Connection Control Program 
(CCCP) in order to meet MI-Department of Environmental Quality requirements.  Cross 
connections are connections to the water system that have the potential to draw unsafe 
sources of water into the system during a low pressure event. An example would be an 
irrigation system draining water from a lawn back into the public system during a water 
main break. To prevent this, there are requirements for back flow preventers, such as 
check valves, in the system. Common connections include restaurant soda fountain 
machines, irrigation systems, boilers, and industrial equipment.  
 
We out-source inspection and enforcement of this to a company called HydroCorp 
(previously known as Hydro-Design).  The current work involves commercial and 
industrial compliancy with back flow prevention into the public water system.  The 
program is on-going and requires testing and inspection. The company has done a 
fantastic job and is currently performing ongoing inspections services for $308 per 
month. This is based upon a 2017 contract that was extend once into the current year. 
 
As is typical of state regulations, we have been informed that the Department of 
Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy is requiring the CCCP to extend to residential 
connections as well. This is a massive, and expensive undertaking. Doing so will require 
an initial inspection of all residential homes, a process that will take three years and cost 
about $120,000.  
 

City Council Packet 18 October 26, 2020



Once initial inspections are complete, we shall maintain a smaller list of homes that have 
known cross connections, such as irrigation systems. Maintaining inspections on this 
smaller population will be much easier and should reduce ongoing costs by half or more.  
 
We are not pleased with another such unfunded mandate from the state, but there is 
nothing we believe we can do. There is a silver lining. Due to the lead and copper rules, 
we are also required to determine internal plumbing compositions for all of our testing 
sites and for the service leads that enter homes. Engaging in the residential inspections 
shall enable this survey.  
 
To move forward, we have received a proposal from HydroCorp.   This is a service that 
can be bid out. However, as a professional service provider, we do believe we have a 
strong partner and a reasonable price to perform the work. Hydro Corp has been setting 
up inspections, entering private property, and engaging in corrective action with our 
customers for years without complaint.  They do so with the city’s backing. I recommend 
we proceed. A resolution is included with the agenda.   
 
Note that the increased costs for this service are not budgeted. They amount to roughly 
2% of our revenues in the water department. Combined with the addition lead and copper 
testing, this is beyond the ability of the department (fund) to absorb. Though I did not 
prepare a rate increase in tandem with this work proposal. I recommend we proceed with 
a 3% increase in water rates to cover the added costs of this program and other 
inflationary increases since the last increase (March 25, 2019). If there is no objection, I 
will prepare this for approval so it can be applied to usage starting after the next billing 
(December).  
 

 ELECTION WAGES (Business Item) 
The Swartz Creek Election Commission met again on October 7th. The commission 
voted unanimously to recommend another increase of pay for each election inspector. 
The increase is an additional $25.00 hazard pay for the November 2020 elections due 
to Covid -19 Pandemic. This is the second such increase for the November election. 
However, the City Clerk applied for and received grant funding from Center for 
Technology and Civic Life that should cover such costs.  
 
Given our difficulties in sustaining adequate election worker numbers in these uncertain 
times, this was an important facet of the November general election function. A resolution 
is included in the packet that will establish these rates. We are very grateful to have the 
dedicated election workers that we have, and we owe many thanks to the staff and folks 
that work hard to make the Creek elections safe, predictable, and comfortable for the 
inspectors.  

 
 CLOSED SESSION (Business Item) 

Mr. Gildner notified me that we may have litigation or mediation pending.  He requests 
a closed session to provide additional detail about an advisable strategy. This is a 
purpose permitted for discussion in a closed session, and I find it to be advisable to 
do so in this case.  A resolution is included to move the council into a closed session 
for this purpose.  
 

Council Questions, Inquiries, Requests, Comments, and Notes    

City Council Packet 19 October 26, 2020



   
Winter Events: The buck pole at the Kincaid fair grounds is on for November 
15th. It is unclear if there will be a Christmas parade or other seasonal events.  
Miller Road Camper: The camper had to be removed by a towing company. 
However, it was relocated almost immediately down the road. We are seeking 
input from the prosecutor regarding the applicability of the court order to the 
new site. 
Miller Road Water Main: As I write this, we have another break in the 7000 
block of Miller Road. Valve operations are not as effective for isolation as 
needed. Thankfully, this main will be replaced with the USDA funds.  
  

City Council Packet 20 October 26, 2020



City of Swartz Creek 
RESOLUTIONS  

Regular Council Meeting, Monday, October 26, 2020, 7:00 P.M. 
 
Resolution No. 201026-4A MINUTES – October 12, 2020 

 
Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 
 
I Move the Swartz Creek City Council approve the Minutes of the Regular Council 
Meeting held Monday, October 12, 2020, to be circulated and placed on file. 
 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 
 
Voting For:_______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________  

 
Resolution No. 201026-5A AGENDA APPROVAL 

 
Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 

 
I Move the Swartz Creek City Council approve the Agenda as presented / printed / 
amended for the Regular Council Meeting of October 26, 2020, to be circulated and 
placed on file. 

 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 
Resolution No. 201026-6A CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

 
 Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council accept the City Manager’s Report of October 
26, 2020, including reports and communications, to be circulated and placed on file. 

  
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 
Resolution No. 201026-8B RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT THE 2019-2020 FISCAL 

YEAR AUDIT BY INDEPENDENT AUDITOR PLANTE-
MORAN 

 
Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 
WHEREAS, Section 8.13 of the City Charter requires an audit of all accounts of the city 
government; and 
 

City Council Packet 21 October 26, 2020



WHEREAS, independent auditors, retained by the city per a qualified bidding selection 
process, have completed said audit for the most recent fiscal year, 2020; and 
 
WHEREAS, said audit contains financials for related public utilities, enterprise accounts, 
and the Downtown Development Authority; and 
 
WHEREAS, the audit, as presented to the city council on October 26, 2020, has been 
found to meet generally accepted accounting standards and required reporting 
provisions of state and local law. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City of Swartz Creek approve the 2019-
2020 Fiscal Audit Report prepared by Plante-Moran, a copy of which is attached hereto, 
and further, direct such to be published, distributed, circulated and placed on file in a 
manner prescribed by law. 

 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 
Resolution No. 201026-8C RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AN EXPANDED CROSS 

CONNECTION PROGRAM AGREEMENT 
 

 Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 

WHEREAS, to remain compliant to the Safe Drinking Water Act of 1976, PA 339, the 
City of Swartz Creek instituted a Cross Connection Control and Compliancy Program, 
and solicited and awarded sealed bids to HydroCorp of Troy, Michigan to implement the 
program, and; 

 
WHEREAS, HydroCorp has brought the City into full compliancy with the Act and MI-
DEQ Regulations, and; 

 
WHEREAS, it is mandatory for the City to continue the program in order to remain 
compliant with the Act and MI-DEQ Regulations, and; 
 
WHEREAS, additional guidance from the Michigan Department of Environment, Great 
Lakes, and Energy requires that the city expand its cross connection control program to 
residential users, and; 

 
WHEREAS, the work performed by HydroCorp is a specialized professional service and 
cannot be done by regularly employed crews of the City, and; 

 
WHEREAS, it is efficient and desirable for the City to remain with a single company to 
maintain compliancy and continued continuity of the established records currently 
maintained by HydroCorp, Inc. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the City of Swartz Creek appropriate an 
amount not to exceed $3,347 per month for 36 months, total accrued amount not to 
exceed $120,492, payment for expansion and continuation of the City’s Cross 
Connection Compliancy and Control Program, to HydroCorp, a Michigan corporation 

City Council Packet 22 October 26, 2020



located in Troy, Michigan, agreement period to run from February 1, 2021 through 
January 31, 2023, funds to be appropriated from 590, Water Supply Fund. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, the City Council approves the cross connection 
professional services agreement included in the October 26, 2020 city council packet 
and direct the Mayor and City Clerk to execute said agreement on behalf of the city. 

 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 
 

Resolution No. 201026-8D ELECTION WORKER PAY ADJUSTMENTS   
 
Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 
WHEREAS, the City Clerk applied for and received grant funding from Center for 
Technology and Civic Life; and 

WHEREAS, grant funding will cover expenses incurred due to the COVID-19 Pandemic; 
and 

WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek Election Commission met on October 7, 2020 and 
voted unanimously to recommend another increase and pay each election inspector an 
additional $25.00 hazard pay for the November 2020 elections due to COVID -19 
Pandemic.  
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Swartz Creek City Council hereby authorizes that 
each election inspector receives an additional $25.00 hazard pay for the November 
2020 elections due to the COVID 19 Pandemic, effective October 26, 2020. 
 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 

 Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 
 
Resolution No. 201026-8E CLOSED SESSION TO STRATEGIZE WITH THE CITY 

ATTORNEY (ROLL CALL VOTE) 
 

 Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek City Council and City Attorney desire to consider 
options related to potential/pending litigation, and;  
 
WHEREAS, the MCL 15.268(e) permits a governing body to enter a closed session to 
consult with the city attorney regarding a trial or settlement strategy in connection with 
pending litigation, finding that an open meeting would have a detrimental financial effect 
on the settlement position of the city. 
 

City Council Packet 23 October 26, 2020



NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the City of Swartz Creek City Council exit the 
regular session of the city council and enter into a closed session for the purpose of 
discussion with the city attorney. 
 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 
Resolution No. 201026-11A ADJOURN 

 
 Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council adjourn the regular council meeting of October 
26, 2020, and set _______________________(location) as the venue for the next 
regularly scheduled council meeting of November 9, 2020. 

  
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 
 

City Council Packet 24 October 26, 2020



Draft Minutes 
 

CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK 
SWARTZ CREEK, MICHIGAN 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
DATE 10/12/2020 

 
The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Mayor Krueger in the Swartz Creek City 
Council Chambers, 8083 Civic Drive. 
 
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Councilmembers Present:  Cramer, Farmer, Gilbert, Hicks, Krueger, Pinkston, 

Henry. 
 
Councilmembers Absent:   None. 
 
Staff Present: City Manager Adam Zettel, Clerk Connie Olger. 
    
Others Present: Lania Rocha, Samantha Fountain, Steve Long. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 Resolution No. 201012-01            (Carried) 
 
  Motion by Councilmember Henry 
  Second by Councilmember Gilbert 
 

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council approve the Minutes of the Regular 
Council Meeting held Monday September 28, 2020 to be circulated and placed 
on file. 

 
YES Farmer, Gilbert, Hicks, Krueger, Pinkston, Henry, Cramer.  

  NO:   None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA          
 
 Resolution No. 201012-02            (Carried) 
 
  Motion by Councilmember Cramer 
  Second by Councilmember Gilbert 
 

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council approve the Agenda as, amended for the 
Regular Council Meeting of October 12, 2020, to be circulated and placed on file. 

 
YES:  Gilbert, Hicks, Krueger, Pinkston, Henry, Cramer, Farmer. 
NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 

 
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

City Council Packet 25 October 26, 2020



Draft Minutes 
 

 
  Resolution No. 201012-03            (Carried) 
 
  Motion by Councilmember Farmer 
  Second by Councilmember Cramer 
 

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council accept the City Manager’s Report of October 
12, 2020, including reports and communications to be circulated and placed on 
file. 
 

Discussion Ensued. 
 

YES:   Hicks, Krueger, Pinkston, Henry, Cramer, Farmer, Gilbert. 
NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 

MEETING OPENED TO THE PUBLIC:  
 
None.  
 
COUNCIL BUSINESS:  
 
RESOLUTION TO APPROVE APPRAISAL FOR 5376 MILLER ROAD 
 

Resolution No. 201012-04          (Carried) 
       

Motion by Councilmember Hicks 
Second by Councilmember Cramer 
 

WHEREAS, the city assesses property and collects taxes per the Michigan 
General Property Tax Act; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Assessor is charged with determining values for property to 
be taxed under the same act and rules promulgated by the Michigan Department 
of Treasury, with the intent of valuing real and personal property in the city 
accurately, fairly, and consistently; and  
 
WHEREAS, from time to time, the city finds it necessary to defend valuations that 
are appealed by owner interests in order to achieve those intentions. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City of Swartz Creek City Council 
amend the budget to allocate $5,000 of unencumbered, unreserved general fund 
monies to the assessing department for the purpose of contesting the tax appeals 
by parties commonly referred to as the 5376 Miller Road, PID 58-29-551-011, 
costs to include an appraisal, legal services, and other related expenses to be 
provided by the city’s legal counsel and an appraisal firm, as selected by the city 

City Council Packet 26 October 26, 2020



Draft Minutes 
 

manager or assessor, with the authority of the city council under Section 2-
402(a)(2) of the city ordinances. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the City of Swartz Creek City Council approve the 
proposal from Kevin Groves Appraisals, Inc., as included in the city council packet 
of October 12, 2020 and further direct the Mayor to execute said proposal on behalf 
of the city.  
 

Discussion Ensued. 
 
YES:  Krueger, Pinkston, Henry, Cramer, Farmer, Gilbert, Hicks.  
NO: None. Motion Declared Carried. 
            

A RESOLUTION TO CONDUCT APPRAISALS FOR PARTIAL TAKINGS TO 
CONSTRUCT AND MAINTAIN THE GENESEE VALLEY TRAIL EXTENSION  

 
Resolution No. 201012-05            (Carried) 

  
Motion by Councilmember Gilbert 
Second by Councilmember Hicks 
 

 WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek has formally planned for, acquired funds 
 for, and intends to construct an extension of the Genesee Valley Regional Trail, 
 and   

 
WHEREAS, the trail is a high priority regional asset that functions as an integral 
part of a non-motorized transportation network, as well as a recreational asset, and 
 
WHEREAS, the trail extension will provide value public use for walkers, bikers, 
joggers, and other users by providing a direct health and recreational benefit and 
by providing access to non-motorized travel between key destinations, and 
 
WHEREAS, MDOT standards for construction require a substantial and ridged 
footprint to accommodate the 10 foot wide path and accompanying shoulders, and    
 
WHEREAS, some sections of the path lack the proper right-of-way to 
accommodate the path, and  

 
WHEREAS, some permanent easements may not be acquired through donation 
or good faith offers acquisition, necessitating the condemnation of permanent 
and/or temporary easements from land owners.  

 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Swartz Creek approves the 
engagement letter from Jeffrey G. Genzink, MAI (Integra Realty Resources) to 
conduct the required market appraisals for the easements necessary.  
 

City Council Packet 27 October 26, 2020



Draft Minutes 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Swartz Creek City Council authorizes 
expenditures of up to $15,000 for this purpose, including the initial appraisals and 
supplemental or hourly work as necessary to complete the process.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Swartz Creek City Council authorizes and 
directs the Mayor to execute the letter on behalf of the city.  

 
Discussion Ensued. 

 
   YES:  Pinkston, Henry, Cramer, Farmer, Gilbert, Hicks, Krueger. 

NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 

RACEWAY                      DISCUSSION 
 
Senator Ananich updated council on Bill No. 661.  

 
RESOLUTION TO AFFIRM THE ASSESSOR ACCESSIBILITY POLICY  

 
Resolution No. 201012-06            (Carried) 
 

  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Pinkston 
 Second by Councilmember Hicks 

 
WHEREAS, the State Tax Commission (STC) regulates and audits the 
governmental assessing profession in the State of Michigan; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek operates the assessing function as the local 
unit of government; and 
 
WHEREAS, the STC released STC Guideline 2020-1, which outlines a set of 
guidelines and expectations for the assessing function as conducted by local 
governments; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek intends to fully comply with all such 
expectations and guidelines. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, I MOVE that the City of Swartz Creek City Council approves 
the Policy of accessibility for the City of Swartz Creek Assessment Department to 
taxpayers of the City of Swartz Creek, as included in the City Council Packet of 
October 12, 2020 and directs the Clerk to make such policy available to the public.  
 

   YES:   Henry, Cramer, Farmer, Gilbert, Hicks, Krueger, Pinkston. 
NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 

 
 

MEETING OPENED TO THE PUBLIC: 

City Council Packet 28 October 26, 2020



Draft Minutes 
 

 
Steve Long, 5356 Worchester, requested the City call Consumers Energy about an issue 
he is having.  
 
REMARKS BY COUNCILMEMBERS: 
 
Councilmember Henry wanted to clarify that he feels the city has no preferential treatment 
on enforcements. 
 
Councilmember Cramer 911 had a great fundraiser. Trunk or Treat turnout was fantastic. 
 
Councilmember Farmer is happy to be meeting in person in the council chambers and to 
hear from Senator Ananich. 
 
Councilmember Hicks the new roads look great.  She also commented on signs in the 
right of way. 
 
Councilmember Gilbert spoke of a resident who inquired if city had a noise ordinance and 
that he has called the police about the noise and gets no response.  He wants everyone 
stay healthy and safe. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Pinkston streets are fabulous and the residents in the village are showing 
such pride in ownership. He also couldn’t believe the turnout for the Trunk or Treat 
 
Mayor Krueger gives a shout out in regards to the census. We are over 99% which is 
great.  
 
Councilmember Henry asked Mr. Zettel to take a look at the sign on the corner of Fairchild 
and Cappy. He feels it blocks the view of traffic.  Mr. Zettel responded he will look into it.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 

Resolution No. 201012-07             (Carried) 
 
  Motion by Councilmember Gilbert 
  Second by Councilmember Farmer 
 
 I Move the Swartz Creek City Council adjourn the regular meeting at 8:12 p.m. 
 
  Unanimous Voice Vote. 
 
 
___________________________   _____________________________ 
David A. Krueger, Mayor     Connie Olger, City Clerk  
 
 
 

City Council Packet 29 October 26, 2020



2020-21 2020-21
ORIGINAL AMENDED YTD BALANCE AVAILABLE % BDGT

GL NUMBER BUDGET  BUDGET 09/30/2020 BALANCE USED

Fund 101 - General Fund
  000.000 - General 2,322,610.27 2,322,610.27 1,565,576.67 757,033.60 67.41

  215.000 - Administration and Clerk 40.00 40.00 0.40 39.60 1.00

  301.000 - Police Dept 4,100.00 4,100.00 4,257.00 (157.00) 103.83

  336.000 - Fire Department 0.00 0.00 40,883.00 (40,883.00) 100.00

  345.000 - PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING 25,050.00 25,050.00 4,814.46 20,235.54 19.22

  410.000 - Building & Zoning & Planning 65,200.00 65,200.00 16,476.00 48,724.00 25.27

  444.000 - Sidewalks 900.00 900.00 0.00 900.00 0.00

  448.000 - Lighting 9,870.00 9,870.00 1,930.38 7,939.62 19.56

  523.000 - Grass, Brush & Weeds 4,500.00 4,500.00 3,030.00 1,470.00 67.33

  694.000 - Community Development Block Grant 33,300.00 33,300.00 0.00 33,300.00 0.00

  728.005 - Holland Square Streetscape 40,000.00 40,000.00 40,000.00 0.00 100.00

  782.000 - Facilities - Abrams Park 140.00 140.00 140.00 0.00 100.00

  783.000 - Facilities - Elms Rd Park 6,700.00 6,700.00 3,160.00 3,540.00 47.16

  790.000 - Facilities-Senior Center/Libr 6,200.00 6,200.00 923.46 5,276.54 14.89

  790.012 - CDBG Senior Center Operations 1,440.95 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  794.000 - Community Promotions Program 0.00 0.00 1,000.00 (1,000.00) 100.00

  TOTAL REVENUES 2,520,051.22 2,518,610.27 1,682,191.37 836,418.90

  000.000 - General 14,160.00 14,160.00 3,410.37 10,749.63 24.08

  101.000 - Council 22,585.73 22,585.73 8,426.46 14,159.27 37.31

  172.000 - Executive 109,424.96 252,233.81 174,417.58 77,816.23 69.15

  215.000 - Administration and Clerk 36,221.00 36,221.00 4,400.77 31,820.23 12.15

                            REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK                                      
                                                     PERIOD ENDING 09/30/2020                                                      

City Council Packet 30 October 26, 2020



2020-21 2020-21
ORIGINAL AMENDED YTD BALANCE AVAILABLE % BDGT

GL NUMBER BUDGET  BUDGET 09/30/2020 BALANCE USED

  228.000 - Information Technology 15,875.00 15,875.00 7,486.38 8,388.62 47.16

  247.000 - Board of Review 3,658.85 3,658.85 322.96 3,335.89 8.83

  253.000 - Treasurer 93,323.00 93,323.00 24,925.84 68,397.16 26.71

  257.000 - Assessor 47,959.00 47,959.00 8,241.01 39,717.99 17.18

  262.000 - Elections 47,202.00 47,202.00 15,487.93 31,714.07 32.81

  266.000 - Legal Council 14,000.00 14,000.00 2,604.00 11,396.00 18.60

  301.000 - Police Dept 7,900.00 7,900.00 3,925.30 3,974.70 49.69

  301.266 - Legal Council PSFY 5,000.00 5,000.00 3,408.36 1,591.64 68.17

  301.851 - Retiree Employer Health Care PSFY 19,670.00 19,670.00 5,732.42 13,937.58 29.14

  334.000 - Metro Police Authority 1,019,475.00 1,019,475.00 253,711.00 765,764.00 24.89

  336.000 - Fire Department 206,650.00 206,650.00 65,803.52 140,846.48 31.84

  345.000 - PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING 39,132.39 88,822.39 59,833.75 28,988.64 67.36

  410.000 - Building & Zoning & Planning 128,884.00 128,884.00 10,081.27 118,802.73 7.82

  410.025 - 2017 CDBG 5157 Morrish Demo 375.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  444.000 - Sidewalks 1,200.00 1,200.00 0.00 1,200.00 0.00

  448.000 - Lighting 105,000.00 105,000.00 16,506.81 88,493.19 15.72

  523.000 - Grass, Brush & Weeds 1,200.00 1,200.00 550.00 650.00 45.83

  694.000 - Community Development Block Grant 33,300.00 33,300.00 0.00 33,300.00 0.00

  728.000 - Economic Development 0.00 0.00 55.91 (55.91) 100.00

  781.000 - Facilities - Pajtas Amphitheat 1,468.00 1,468.00 375.64 1,092.36 25.59

  782.000 - Facilities - Abrams Park 37,785.87 37,785.87 10,139.01 27,646.86 26.83

  783.000 - Facilities - Elms Rd Park 80,732.00 80,732.00 17,098.48 63,633.52 21.18

  784.000 - Facilities - Bicentennial Park 1,324.00 1,324.00 172.97 1,151.03 13.06

City Council Packet 31 October 26, 2020



2020-21 2020-21
ORIGINAL AMENDED YTD BALANCE AVAILABLE % BDGT

GL NUMBER BUDGET  BUDGET 09/30/2020 BALANCE USED

  786.000 - Non-Motorized Trailway 30,000.00 30,000.00 0.00 30,000.00 0.00

  787.000 - Veterans Memorial Park 2,840.00 2,840.00 742.93 2,097.07 26.16

  788.000 - Disc Golf Park 10,000.00 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.00

  790.000 - Facilities-Senior Center/Libr 36,620.58 36,620.58 6,711.00 29,909.58 18.33

  790.012 - CDBG Senior Center Operations 1,440.95 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  793.000 - Facilities - City Hall 19,802.88 19,802.88 3,742.58 16,060.30 18.90

  794.000 - Community Promotions Program 50,059.00 50,059.00 10,311.76 39,747.24 20.60

  796.000 - Facilities - Cemetary 1,901.70 1,901.70 328.32 1,573.38 17.26

  797.000 - Facilities - City Parking Lots 5,600.00 8,890.00 905.84 7,984.16 10.19

  851.000 - Retired Employee Health Care 25,900.00 25,900.00 2,852.96 23,047.04 11.02

  965.000 - Transfers Out 175,367.50 175,367.50 75,000.00 100,367.50 42.77

  TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,453,038.41 2,647,011.31 797,713.13 1,849,298.18

Fund 101 - General Fund:
TOTAL REVENUES 2,520,051.22 2,518,610.27 1,682,191.37 836,418.90 66.79
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,453,038.41 2,647,011.31 797,713.13 1,849,298.18 30.14
NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 67,012.81 (128,401.04) 884,478.24 (1,012,879.28)

Fund 202 - Major Street Fund
  000.000 - General 450,475.00 450,475.00 106,853.91 343,621.09 23.72

  441.000 - Miller Rd Park & Ride 5,000.00 5,000.00 421.96 4,578.04 8.44

  474.000 - Traffic Services 0.00 0.00 364.36 (364.36) 100.00

  478.000 - Snow & Ice Removal 2,400.00 2,400.00 0.00 2,400.00 0.00

  TOTAL REVENUES 457,875.00 457,875.00 107,640.23 350,234.77

  228.000 - Information Technology 1,000.00 1,000.00 326.18 673.82 32.62

  441.000 - Miller Rd Park & Ride 5,058.24 5,058.24 659.07 4,399.17 13.03

  448.000 - Lighting 15,000.00 58,330.00 43,330.00 15,000.00 74.28

City Council Packet 32 October 26, 2020



2020-21 2020-21
ORIGINAL AMENDED YTD BALANCE AVAILABLE % BDGT

GL NUMBER BUDGET  BUDGET 09/30/2020 BALANCE USED

  449.500 - Right of Way - General 10,000.00 10,000.00 2,400.00 7,600.00 24.00

  449.501 - Right of Way - Storms 20,000.00 20,000.00 252.19 19,747.81 1.26

  463.000 - Routine Maint - Streets 158,025.87 158,025.87 15,259.73 142,766.14 9.66

  463.307 - Oakview - Seymour to Chelmsford 50,000.00 113,758.21 113,758.21 0.00 100.00

  463.308 - Winston - Oakview to Chesterfield 20,000.00 20,000.00 10,503.10 9,496.90 52.52

  473.000 - Routine Maint - Bridges 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00

  474.000 - Traffic Services 40,202.00 56,021.08 7,649.53 48,371.55 13.65

  478.000 - Snow & Ice Removal 81,307.00 81,307.00 711.23 80,595.77 0.87

  482.000 - Administrative 17,762.00 17,762.00 3,191.42 14,570.58 17.97

  538.500 - Intercommunity storm drains 12,500.00 12,500.00 1,125.19 11,374.81 9.00

  965.000 - Transfers Out 100,000.00 100,000.00 100,000.00 0.00 100.00

  TOTAL EXPENDITURES 531,855.11 654,762.40 299,165.85 355,596.55

Fund 202 - Major Street Fund:
TOTAL REVENUES 457,875.00 457,875.00 107,640.23 350,234.77 23.51
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 531,855.11 654,762.40 299,165.85 355,596.55 45.69
NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES (73,980.11) (196,887.40) (191,525.62) (5,361.78)

Fund 203 - Local Street Fund
  000.000 - General 143,500.00 143,500.00 31,061.30 112,438.70 21.65

  449.000 - Right of Way Telecomm 15,000.00 15,000.00 0.00 15,000.00 0.00

  478.000 - Snow & Ice Removal 500.00 500.00 0.00 500.00 0.00

  931.000 - Transfers IN 500,000.00 500,000.00 100,000.00 400,000.00 20.00

  TOTAL REVENUES 659,000.00 659,000.00 131,061.30 527,938.70

  228.000 - Information Technology 1,000.00 1,000.00 326.18 673.82 32.62

  429.000 - Occupational Safety 0.00 0.00 38.10 (38.10) 100.00

  448.000 - Lighting 15,000.00 22,222.00 7,222.00 15,000.00 32.50

City Council Packet 33 October 26, 2020



2020-21 2020-21
ORIGINAL AMENDED YTD BALANCE AVAILABLE % BDGT

GL NUMBER BUDGET  BUDGET 09/30/2020 BALANCE USED

  449.500 - Right of Way - General 22,500.00 22,500.00 1,200.00 21,300.00 5.33

  463.000 - Routine Maint - Streets 285,870.05 285,870.05 13,372.42 272,497.63 4.68

  463.107 - Chelmsford - Seymour to Oakview 50,000.00 80,148.30 80,148.30 0.00 100.00

  463.108 - Oxford Court 55,000.00 79,736.32 79,736.32 0.00 100.00

  474.000 - Traffic Services 20,006.00 20,130.20 2,105.43 18,024.77 10.46

  478.000 - Snow & Ice Removal 68,999.00 68,999.00 649.38 68,349.62 0.94

  482.000 - Administrative 20,319.75 20,319.75 2,393.46 17,926.29 11.78

  538.500 - Intercommunity storm drains 10,000.00 10,000.00 1,125.19 8,874.81 11.25

  TOTAL EXPENDITURES 548,694.80 610,925.62 188,316.78 422,608.84

Fund 203 - Local Street Fund:
TOTAL REVENUES 659,000.00 659,000.00 131,061.30 527,938.70 19.89
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 548,694.80 610,925.62 188,316.78 422,608.84 30.82
NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 110,305.20 48,074.38 (57,255.48) 105,329.86

Fund 204 - MUNICIPAL STREET FUND
  000.000 - General 651,580.00 651,580.00 668,415.62 (16,835.62) 102.58

  TOTAL REVENUES 651,580.00 651,580.00 668,415.62 (16,835.62)

  905.000 - Debt Service 167,917.11 167,917.11 320.83 167,596.28 0.19

  965.000 - Transfers Out 500,000.00 500,000.00 0.00 500,000.00 0.00

  TOTAL EXPENDITURES 667,917.11 667,917.11 320.83 667,596.28

Fund 204 - MUNICIPAL STREET FUND:
TOTAL REVENUES 651,580.00 651,580.00 668,415.62 (16,835.62) 102.58
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 667,917.11 667,917.11 320.83 667,596.28 0.05
NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES (16,337.11) (16,337.11) 668,094.79 (684,431.90)

Fund 226 - Garbage Fund
  000.000 - General 415,025.00 415,025.00 416,613.07 (1,588.07) 100.38

  TOTAL REVENUES 415,025.00 415,025.00 416,613.07 (1,588.07)

City Council Packet 34 October 26, 2020



2020-21 2020-21
ORIGINAL AMENDED YTD BALANCE AVAILABLE % BDGT

GL NUMBER BUDGET  BUDGET 09/30/2020 BALANCE USED
  000.000 - General 10,036.75 10,036.75 0.00 10,036.75 0.00

  101.000 - Council 3,169.93 3,169.93 1,631.26 1,538.67 51.46

  172.000 - Executive 7,850.00 7,850.00 2,563.37 5,286.63 32.65

  215.000 - Administration and Clerk 3,735.00 3,735.00 1,156.73 2,578.27 30.97

  228.000 - Information Technology 2,075.00 2,075.00 822.95 1,252.05 39.66

  253.000 - Treasurer 15,705.00 15,705.00 4,756.53 10,948.47 30.29

  257.000 - Assessor 800.00 800.00 0.00 800.00 0.00

  528.000 - Sanitation Collection 292,202.58 292,202.58 52,194.17 240,008.41 17.86

  530.000 - Wood Chipping 52,484.50 52,484.50 13,732.10 38,752.40 26.16

  782.000 - Facilities - Abrams Park 9,092.00 9,092.00 2,345.68 6,746.32 25.80

  783.000 - Facilities - Elms Rd Park 12,140.00 12,140.00 4,089.12 8,050.88 33.68

  793.000 - Facilities - City Hall 4,045.09 4,045.09 871.70 3,173.39 21.55

  TOTAL EXPENDITURES 413,335.85 413,335.85 84,163.61 329,172.24

Fund 226 - Garbage Fund:
TOTAL REVENUES 415,025.00 415,025.00 416,613.07 (1,588.07) 100.38
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 413,335.85 413,335.85 84,163.61 329,172.24 20.36
NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 1,689.15 1,689.15 332,449.46 (330,760.31)

Fund 248 - Downtown Development Fund
  000.000 - General 66,962.00 66,962.00 50,319.24 16,642.76 75.15

  728.004 - Family Movie Night 2,000.00 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.00

  TOTAL REVENUES 68,962.00 68,962.00 50,319.24 18,642.76

  173.000 - DDA Administration 2,820.00 2,820.00 2,515.50 304.50 89.20

  728.002 - Streetscape 40,945.00 40,945.00 40,000.00 945.00 97.69

  728.004 - Family Movie Night 3,450.00 11,510.00 4,880.00 6,630.00 42.40

  TOTAL EXPENDITURES 47,215.00 55,275.00 47,395.50 7,879.50

City Council Packet 35 October 26, 2020



2020-21 2020-21
ORIGINAL AMENDED YTD BALANCE AVAILABLE % BDGT

GL NUMBER BUDGET  BUDGET 09/30/2020 BALANCE USED
Fund 248 - Downtown Development Fund:
TOTAL REVENUES 68,962.00 68,962.00 50,319.24 18,642.76 72.97
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 47,215.00 55,275.00 47,395.50 7,879.50 85.74
NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 21,747.00 13,687.00 2,923.74 10,763.26

Fund 350 - City Hall Debt Fund
  000.000 - General 7.00 7.00 0.05 6.95 0.71

  931.000 - Transfers IN 100,357.50 100,357.50 0.00 100,357.50 0.00

  TOTAL REVENUES 100,364.50 100,364.50 0.05 100,364.45

  905.000 - Debt Service 101,117.50 101,117.50 0.00 101,117.50 0.00

  TOTAL EXPENDITURES 101,117.50 101,117.50 0.00 101,117.50

Fund 350 - City Hall Debt Fund:
TOTAL REVENUES 100,364.50 100,364.50 0.05 100,364.45 0.00
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 101,117.50 101,117.50 0.00 101,117.50 0.00
NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES (753.00) (753.00) 0.05 (753.05)

Fund 402 - Fire Equip Replacement Fund
  000.000 - General 11.00 11.00 4.12 6.88 37.45

  931.000 - Transfers IN 75,000.00 75,000.00 75,000.00 0.00 100.00

  TOTAL REVENUES 75,011.00 75,011.00 75,004.12 6.88

  336.000 - Fire Department 3,500.00 3,500.00 0.00 3,500.00 0.00

  TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,500.00 3,500.00 0.00 3,500.00

Fund 402 - Fire Equip Replacement Fund:
TOTAL REVENUES 75,011.00 75,011.00 75,004.12 6.88 99.99
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,500.00 3,500.00 0.00 3,500.00 0.00
NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES 71,511.00 71,511.00 75,004.12 (3,493.12)

Fund 590 - Water Supply Fund
  000.000 - General 6,000.00 6,000.00 16.99 5,983.01 0.28

  540.000 - Water System 2,226,000.00 2,226,000.00 590,623.12 1,635,376.88 26.53

  TOTAL REVENUES 2,232,000.00 2,232,000.00 590,640.11 1,641,359.89

City Council Packet 36 October 26, 2020



2020-21 2020-21
ORIGINAL AMENDED YTD BALANCE AVAILABLE % BDGT

GL NUMBER BUDGET  BUDGET 09/30/2020 BALANCE USED
  000.000 - General 25,091.88 25,091.88 0.00 25,091.88 0.00

  101.000 - Council 13,503.00 13,503.00 4,078.76 9,424.24 30.21

  172.000 - Executive 29,826.00 29,826.00 9,033.85 20,792.15 30.29

  215.000 - Administration and Clerk 19,583.00 19,583.00 3,984.39 15,598.61 20.35

  228.000 - Information Technology 5,675.00 5,675.00 2,167.15 3,507.85 38.19

  253.000 - Treasurer 56,381.50 56,381.50 14,560.90 41,820.60 25.83

  540.000 - Water System 2,037,955.66 2,037,955.66 303,126.57 1,734,829.09 14.87

  542.000 - Read and Bill 51,475.00 51,475.00 4,247.20 47,227.80 8.25

  543.230 - Water Main Repair USDA Grant 243,800.00 315,102.19 333,561.30 (18,459.11) 105.86

  793.000 - Facilities - City Hall 10,289.20 10,289.20 2,147.89 8,141.31 20.88

  905.000 - Debt Service 99,579.23 99,579.23 0.00 99,579.23 0.00

  TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,593,159.47 2,664,461.66 676,908.01 1,987,553.65

Fund 590 - Water Supply Fund:
TOTAL REVENUES 2,232,000.00 2,232,000.00 590,640.11 1,641,359.89 26.46
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,593,159.47 2,664,461.66 676,908.01 1,987,553.65 25.41
NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES (361,159.47) (432,461.66) (86,267.90) (346,193.76)

Fund 591 - Sanitary Sewer Fund
  000.000 - General 5,700.00 5,700.00 339.55 5,360.45 5.96

  536.000 - Sewer System 1,267,000.00 1,267,000.00 342,687.10 924,312.90 27.05

  TOTAL REVENUES 1,272,700.00 1,272,700.00 343,026.65 929,673.35

  000.000 - General 25,091.88 25,091.88 0.00 25,091.88 0.00

  101.000 - Council 12,930.82 12,930.82 4,078.20 8,852.62 31.54

  172.000 - Executive 29,964.00 29,964.00 8,802.35 21,161.65 29.38

  215.000 - Administration and Clerk 18,433.00 18,433.00 3,984.59 14,448.41 21.62

  228.000 - Information Technology 5,375.00 5,375.00 2,167.15 3,207.85 40.32

City Council Packet 37 October 26, 2020



2020-21 2020-21
ORIGINAL AMENDED YTD BALANCE AVAILABLE % BDGT

GL NUMBER BUDGET  BUDGET 09/30/2020 BALANCE USED
  253.000 - Treasurer 55,919.00 55,919.00 14,560.85 41,358.15 26.04

  536.000 - Sewer System 994,754.59 994,754.59 11,547.94 983,206.65 1.16

  537.000 - Sewer Lift Stations 10,982.00 10,982.00 1,861.43 9,120.57 16.95

  542.000 - Read and Bill 63,122.00 63,122.00 14,509.86 48,612.14 22.99

  543.310 - Sewer District Rehabilitation 0.00 26,263.00 6,556.50 19,706.50 24.96

  543.400 - Reline Existing Sewers 183,128.00 183,128.00 0.00 183,128.00 0.00

  543.401 - Flush & TV Sewers 90,000.00 90,000.00 14,058.00 75,942.00 15.62

  793.000 - Facilities - City Hall 9,790.16 9,790.16 2,137.44 7,652.72 21.83

  TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,499,490.45 1,525,753.45 84,264.31 1,441,489.14

Fund 591 - Sanitary Sewer Fund:
TOTAL REVENUES 1,272,700.00 1,272,700.00 343,026.65 929,673.35 26.95
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,499,490.45 1,525,753.45 84,264.31 1,441,489.14 5.52
NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES (226,790.45) (253,053.45) 258,762.34 (511,815.79)

Fund 661 - Motor Pool Fund
  000.000 - General 234,250.00 234,250.00 26,073.10 208,176.90 11.13

  TOTAL REVENUES 234,250.00 234,250.00 26,073.10 208,176.90

  172.000 - Executive 10,300.00 10,300.00 9,736.00 564.00 94.52

  228.000 - Information Technology 1,070.00 1,070.00 270.54 799.46 25.28

  253.000 - Treasurer 7,788.00 7,788.00 1,601.26 6,186.74 20.56

  795.000 - Facilities - City Garage 386,681.00 386,681.00 48,108.00 338,573.00 12.44

  TOTAL EXPENDITURES 405,839.00 405,839.00 59,715.80 346,123.20

Fund 661 - Motor Pool Fund:
TOTAL REVENUES 234,250.00 234,250.00 26,073.10 208,176.90 11.13
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 405,839.00 405,839.00 59,715.80 346,123.20 14.71
NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES (171,589.00) (171,589.00) (33,642.70) (137,946.30)

City Council Packet 38 October 26, 2020



PROPOSAL 

DEVELOPED FOR 

Adam Zettel, AICP 

City Manager 

City of Swartz Creek, MI 

8083 Civic Center Drive 

Swartz Creek, MI  48473 

October 8, 2020 

CROSS-CONNECTION 
CONTROL / BACKFLOW 
PREVENTION 

WATER SYSTEM 
SURVEYS / AUDITS 

PIPE SYSTEM MAPPING 
AND LABELING 

WATER SAMPLING 
AND ANALYSIS / RISK 
ASSESSMENTS 

PROGRAM  
AND PROJECT  
MANAGEMENT 

COMPLIANCE  
ASSISTANCE /  
DOCUMENTATION 

MICHIGAN CORPORATE OFFICE 
5700 Crooks Road, Suite 100 
Troy, MI 48098 
800.690.6651 TOLL FREE 

248.250.5000 PHONE 

248.786.1788 FAX GENERAL 

info@hydrocorpinc.com EMAIL 

City Council Packet 39 October 26, 2020



 

 
 
 Page 2 | City of Swartz Creek | October 8, 2020   

CORPORATE OFFICE 

5700 Crooks Road, Suite 100, Troy, MI 48098 
p  800.690.6651   248.250.5000   f  248.786.1789   hydrocorpinc.com 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SCOPE OF WORK ................................................................ 3 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT. ................... 4-10 

QUALIFICATIONS ............................................................... 11 

  

   

City Council Packet 40 October 26, 2020



 Page 3 | City of Swartz Creek | October 8, 2020
CORPORATE OFFICE 

5700 Crooks Road, Suite 100, Troy, MI 48098 
p  800.690.6651   248.250.5000   f  248.786.1789   hydrocorpinc.com 

SCOPE OF WORK 

Based on your current program, HydroCorp™ will provide the following services to the City of Swartz Creek.  This project is a 
continued effort for an ongoing Cross‐Connection Control Program and will provide the City of Swartz Creek with the 
necessary data and information to maintain compliance with the Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and 
Energy (EGLE) Water Bureau Cross Connection Control Regulations. Once this project has been approved and accepted by 
the City and HydroCorp, you may expect completion of the following elements within a three (3) year period. The 
components of the project include: 

1. Annually, perform a minimum of 34 initial inspections, compliance inspections, and re‐inspections at individual 
industrial, commercial, institutional facilities and miscellaneous water users within the City served by the public water 
supply for cross‐connections. Inspections will be conducted in accordance with the EGLE Water Bureau Cross 
Connection Control regulations.

2. Annually, perform a minimum of 498 initial inspections, compliance inspections, and re‐inspections at individual 
residential homes located within the City served by the public water supply for cross‐connections. Inspections will be 
conducted in accordance with the EGLE Water Bureau Cross Connection Control regulations. Inspections will include an 
inventory of the incoming service line material (wall to meter), plumbing service material (downstream of meter), and 
sump discharge locations.

3. Generate all backflow prevention assembly test notices, non‐compliance notices and coordinate/monitor backflow 
prevention assembly testing compliance for all backflow prevention assemblies.

4. Perform administrative functions including: answering water user telephone calls, scheduling of inspections, mailing of 
all notices, verification of backflow prevention assembly tester credentials & proper testing results and general 
customer service and program education inquiries.

5. Generate and document the required program data for the facilities using the HydroCorp Software Data Management 
Program.

6. Submit comprehensive management reports on a quarterly basis.

7. Conduct an annual review meeting to discuss overall program status and recommendations.

8. Provide up to six‐ (6) ASSE approved hose bibb vacuum breakers or anti‐frost hose bibb vacuum breakers, (i.e. 
combination) per non‐residential facility and four – (4) per residential home as required, in order to place a facility into 
immediate compliance at the time of inspection. Up to 2,050 vacuum breakers are included in this proposal.

9. Prepare the annual State of Michigan, EGLE Water Bureau Cross Connection Report.

10. Assist the City with a community wide public relations program including general awareness brochures and customized 
web site cross connection control program overview content and resources.

11. Provide ongoing support via phone, fax, internet, text or email.

The above services will be provided for: 

Monthly Amount: $ 3,347.00      Annual Amount: $ 40,164.00   Contract Total: $ 120,492.00  

Contract Amount is based upon a 36‐month period.  HydroCorp will invoice in 36 equal amounts of $ 3,347.00 

City Council Packet 41 October 26, 2020



 Page 4 | City of Swartz Creek | October 8, 2020
CORPORATE OFFICE 

5700 Crooks Road, Suite 100, Troy, MI 48098 
p  800.690.6651   248.250.5000   f  248.786.1789   hydrocorpinc.com 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT 

This agreement, made and entered into this (Date)     by and between the City of Swartz Creek 
organized and existing under the laws of the State of Michigan referred to as “Utility”, and HydroCorp™ a Michigan 
Corporation, referred to as “HydroCorp”. 

WHEREAS, the Utility supplies potable water throughout  its corporate boundary to property owners; and desires 
to enter into a professional services contract for cross connection control program inspection, reporting and management 
services. 

WHEREAS,  HydroCorp  is  experienced  in  and  capable  of  supplying  professional  inspection  of  potable  water 
distribution  systems and  cross  connection  control program management  to  the Utility and  the Utility desires  to engage 
HydroCorp to act as its independent contractor in its cross connection control program. 

WHEREAS,  the Utility has  the authority under  the  laws of  the State of Michigan and  its  local governing body  to 
enter into this professional services contract.  

NOW  THEREFORE,  in  consideration  of  the mutual  agreements  herein  contained,  and  subject  to  the  terms  and 
conditions herein stated, the parties agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I.  Purpose 

During  the  term  of  this  Agreement,  the Utility  agrees  to  engage  HydroCorp  as  an  independent  contractor  to 
inspect and document  its  findings on  its potable water distribution  system  in public, commercial and  industrial  facilities 
within the community.  Each party to this Agreement agrees that it will cooperate in good faith with the other, its agents, 
and subcontractors to facilitate the performance of the mutual obligations set forth in this Agreement. Both Parties to this 
Agreement recognize and acknowledge that the  information presented to them  is complete and accurate, yet due to the 
inaccessible nature of water piping or due to access constraints within water users’ facilities, complete and accurate data is 
not always available. 

ARTICLE II.  Scope of Services 

The  scope of  services  to be provided by HydroCorp under  this Agreement will  include  the  inspections/surveys, 
program administration, answering telephone call  inquires, scheduling of  inspections, program compliance review, public 
education materials, preparation of quarterly management  reports, and annual cross connection  reports with  respect  to 
the  facilities  to  the  extent  specifically  set  forth  in  this  Article  II  (hereinafter  the  “Scope  of  Services”).  Should  other 
reports/services be included within the Scope of Services, the same shall be appended to this Agreement as Exhibit 1. 

2.1  PROGRAM REVIEW/PROGRAM START UP MEETING.   HydroCorp will conduct a Program Startup Meeting for the 
Cross‐Connection Control/Backflow Prevention Program.  Items for discussion/review will include the following: 

 Review state & local regulations

 Review and/or provide assistance in establishing local Cross‐Connection Control Ordinance

 Review/establish wording and timeliness for program notifications including:
  ‐ Inspection Notice 

‐ Compliance Notice 
‐ Non‐Compliance Notices 1‐2, Penalty Notices 

 Special Program Notices

 Electronic use of notices/program information

 Obtain updated facility listing, address information and existing program data from Utility

 Prioritize Inspections (City buildings, schools, high hazard facilities, special circumstances.)

City Council Packet 42 October 26, 2020



 Page 5 | City of Swartz Creek | October 8, 2020
CORPORATE OFFICE 

5700 Crooks Road, Suite 100, Troy, MI 48098 
p  800.690.6651   248.250.5000   f  248.786.1789   hydrocorpinc.com 

 Review/establish procedure for vacant facilities

 Establish facility inspection schedule

 Review/establish procedures and protocol for addressing specific hazards

 Review/establish  high  hazard,  complex  facilities  and  large  industrial  facility  inspection/containment
procedures  including  supplemental  information/notification  that  may  be  requested  from  these  types  of
facilities in order to achieve program compliance.

 Review/establish program reporting procedures including electronic reporting tools

 Review/establish educational and public awareness brochures

2.2 INSPECTIONS. HydroCorp will perform initial inspections, compliance inspections, and re‐inspections at individual 
industrial, commercial, institutional facilities and miscellaneous water users within the utility served by the public 
water supply  for cross‐connections.      Inspections will be conducted  in accordance with Michigan Department of 
Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy Cross Connection Control Rules. 

 Initial  Inspection  –  the  first  time  a HydroCorp  representative  inspects  a  facility  for  cross  connections.
Degree  of Hazard will  be  assigned  and/or  verified  during  this  facility  visit.  The  Degree  of  Hazard will
dictate  future  re‐inspection  frequency/schedule  of  facility,  (facility  will  be  either  compliant  or  non‐
compliant after this inspection).

 Compliance  Inspection  –  subsequent  visit  by  a  HydroCorp  representative  to  a  facility  that  was  non‐
compliant  during  the  Initial  Inspection  to  verify  that  corrective  action was  completed  and meets  the
program requirements.

 Re‐Inspection – Revisit by a HydroCorp representative to a facility that was previously inspected. The re‐
inspection frequency/schedule is based on the degree of hazard assigned to the facility during the initial
inspection (one, five or ten‐year re‐inspection cycle).

2.3 INSPECTION SCHEDULE.  HydroCorp shall determine and coordinate the inspection schedule.  Inspection personnel 
will check in/out on a daily basis with the Utility’s designated contact person.  The initial check in will include a list 
of inspections scheduled.  An exit interview will include a list of inspections completed. 

2.4 PROGRAM DATA.  HydroCorp will generate and document the required program data for the Facility Types listed 
in  the Scope of Services using  the HydroCorp Software Data Management Program. Program Data  shall  remain 
property of the Utility; however, the HydroCorp Software Data Management program shall remain the property of 
HydroCorp and can be purchased for an additional fee. Data services will include: 

 Prioritize and schedule inspections

 Notify users of inspections, backflow device installation and testing requirements if applicable

 Monitor inspection compliance using the HydroCorp online software management program.

 Maintain program to comply with all EGLE regulations

2.5 MANAGEMENT  REPORTS.    HydroCorp  will  submit  comprehensive  management  reports  in  electronic, 
downloadable format on a quarterly & annual basis to the Utility.  Reports to include the following information:   

 Name, location and date of inspections

 Number of facilities inspected/surveyed

 Number of facilities compliant/non‐compliant

2.6 REVIEW OF CROSS‐CONNECTION CONTROL ORDINANCE.  HydroCorp will review or assist in the development of a 
cross‐connection control ordinance.  Items for review include:  Code adoption references, standard operational 
procedures, program notice documentation, reporting procedures and preference standards and penalties for 
non‐compliance.

City Council Packet 43 October 26, 2020



 

 
 
 Page 6 | City of Swartz Creek | October 8, 2020   

CORPORATE OFFICE 

5700 Crooks Road, Suite 100, Troy, MI 48098 
p  800.690.6651   248.250.5000   f  248.786.1789   hydrocorpinc.com 

 
2.7 VACUUM BREAKERS. HydroCorp will provide up to six (6) ASSE approved hose bibb vacuum breakers or 

anti‐frost  hose  bibb  vacuum  breakers  per non‐residential  facility  and  four  (4)  per  residential  home  as 
required, in order to place a facility into immediate compliance at the time of inspection if no other cross‐
connections are identified. A total of 2,050 vacuum breakers are included in this agreement.  

 
2.8 PUBLIC RELATIONS PROGRAM.   HydroCorp will assist the Utility with a community‐wide public relations 

program including general awareness brochures and website cross connection control program content. 
 
2.9 SUPPORT.  HydroCorp will provide ongoing support via phone, fax, text, website or email for the contract 

period. 
 
2.10 FACILITY TYPES.  The facility types included in the program are as follows: 
 

 Industrial 

 Institutional 

 Commercial 

 Miscellaneous Water users 

 Multifamily 

 Residential 
 

Complex Facilities. Large industrial and high hazard complexes or facilities may require inspection/survey 
services outside  the scope of  this Agreement.   An  independent cross connection control survey  (at  the 
business owner’s expense) may be required at these facilities and the results submitted to the Utility to 
help verify program compliance. 
 

2.11 INSPECTION TERMS.   HydroCorp will perform a minimum of 102 Non‐Residential and 1494 Residential 
total inspections over a three (3) year contract period. The total inspections include all initial inspections, 
compliance and re‐inspections.   

 
2.12 COMPLIANCE WITH DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT GREAT  LAKES AND ENERGY  (EGLE).   HydroCorp 

will  assist  in  compliance  with  EGLE  and Michigan  Plumbing  Code  cross  connection  control  program 
requirements  for  all  commercial,  industrial,  institutional,  residential, multifamily  and  public  authority 
facilities. 

 
2.13 POLICY MANUAL.    HydroCorp will  review  and/or  develop  a  comprehensive  cross  connection  control 

policy manual/plan and submit to the appropriate regulatory agency for approval on behalf of the Utility. 
 
2.14 INVENTORY.  HydroCorp shall inventory all accessible (ground level) backflow prevention assemblies and 

devices.  Documentation will include:  location, size, make, model and serial number if applicable. 
 
2.15 DATA MANAGEMENT.  HydroCorp shall provide data management and program notices for all inspection 

services throughout the contract period. 
 
2.16 ANNUAL  YEAR  END  REVIEW.    HydroCorp will  conduct  an  on‐site  annual  year‐end  review meeting  to 

discuss overall program status and specific program recommendations. 
 
2.17 CROSS  CONNECTION  CONTROL  BROCHURES.    HydroCorp  will  provide  approximately  1500  cross‐

connection control educational brochures for the duration of the Agreement. 
 

City Council Packet 44 October 26, 2020



 

 
 
 Page 7 | City of Swartz Creek | October 8, 2020   

CORPORATE OFFICE 

5700 Crooks Road, Suite 100, Troy, MI 48098 
p  800.690.6651   248.250.5000   f  248.786.1789   hydrocorpinc.com 

2.18 INSURANCE.   HydroCorp will provide all  required copies of general  liability, workers compensation and 
errors and omissions insurance naming the Utility as an additional insured if required. 

 
 

ARTICLE III.  Responsibilities of the Utility 
 

3.1 UTILITY’S REPRESENTATIVE.  On or before the date services are to commence under this Agreement, the 
Utility  shall  designate  an  authorized  representative  (“Authorized  Representative”)  to  administer  this 
Agreement. 

 
3.2 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS. The Utility, with the technical and professional assistance of HydroCorp, shall 

comply with all applicable local, state, and federal laws, codes, ordinances, and regulations as they pertain 
to the water inspection and testing, and shall pay for any capital improvements needed to bring the water 
treatment and delivery system into compliance with the aforementioned laws.  

 
3.3 NOTICE  OF  LITIGATION.    In  the  event  that  the  Utility  or  HydroCorp    has  or  receives  notice  of  or 

undertakes the prosecution of any actions, claims, suits, administrative or undertakes the prosecution of 
any actions, claims, suits, administrative or arbitration proceedings, or  investigations  in connection with 
this Agreement,  the party receiving such notice or undertaking of such prosecution shall give  the other 
party  timely  notice  of  such  proceedings  and  will  inform  the  other  party  in  advance  of  all  hearings 
regarding such proceedings. 

 
3.4 FACILITY  LISTING.  The  Utility  must  provide  HydroCorp  a  complete  list  of  facilities  to  be  inspected, 

including  facility  name,  type  of  service  connection,  address,  contact  person,  and  phone  number,  (if 
available).  Electronic file format such as Microsoft Excel, etc. is required. An additional one‐time fee to 
manually enter facility listing will be charged at the rate of $80.00 per hour. Incorrect facility addresses 
will be returned to the Utility contact and corrected address will be requested. 

 
3.5 LETTERHEAD/LOGO.   The Utility will provide HydroCorp with an electronic file copy of the utility logo or 

utility letterhead and all envelopes for the mailing of all official program correspondence only. (300 dpi in 
either .eps, or other high quality image format for printing.) 

 
ARTICLE IV.  Term, Compensation and Changes in Scope of Services  

 
4.1 TERM  AND  TERMINATION  TERM.    Services  by  HydroCorp  under  this  Agreement  shall  commence  on              

02/01/2021 and end three (3) years from such date, unless this Agreement is renewed or terminated as 
provided herein.   The terms of this Agreement shall be valid only upon the execution of this Agreement 
within ninety (90) days of its receipt.  Failure to execute this Agreement within the ninety (90) day period 
shall deem the proposed terms void.  

 
4.2 RENEWAL. Upon the expiration of this Agreement the utility will have the option to renew this agreement 

for two (2) consecutive one (1) year period. Increases in fees for each additional term will be based on the 
consumer price index, but no more than 3% annually.  

 
4.3 TERMINATION.   The Utility or HydroCorp may terminate this Agreement at any time and on any date  in 

the  initial and  renewal  terms of  this Agreement, with or without any cause, by giving written notice of 
such  intent  to  terminate  to  the  other  party  at  least  thirty  (30)  days  prior  to  the  effective  date  of 
termination.  Notice  of  the  intent  to  terminate  shall  be  given  in  writing  by  personal  service,  by  an 
authorized agent, or by certified mail, return receipt requested. The Utility shall pay the balance of any 
outstanding accounts for work performed by HydroCorp. 

 

City Council Packet 45 October 26, 2020



 

 
 
 Page 8 | City of Swartz Creek | October 8, 2020   

CORPORATE OFFICE 

5700 Crooks Road, Suite 100, Troy, MI 48098 
p  800.690.6651   248.250.5000   f  248.786.1789   hydrocorpinc.com 

4.4 BASE COMPENSATION.  From the Beginning thirty (30) days after execution of this Agreement, the Utility 
shall pay HydroCorp  as  compensation  (“Base Compensation”)  for  labor,  equipment, material,  supplies, 
and utilities provided and the services performed pursuant to this Agreement, the sum of $3,347.00 per 
month, $40,164.00 annually for a three (3) year contract period totaling $120,492.00. 

 
4.5  PAYMENT OF  INVOICES.   Upon presentation of  invoices by HydroCorp, all payments  including base and 

other compensation shall be due and payable on the first day of each month (due date) after the month 
for which services have been rendered.   All such payments shall be made no  later than thirty  (30) days 
after the due date. Failure to pay shall be deemed a default under this Agreement. For any payment to 
HydroCorp which is not made within thirty (30) calendar days after the due date, HydroCorp, shall receive 
interest at one and one‐half (1½) percent per month on the unpaid balance.  

 
4.6  CHANGES  IN  SCOPE OF  SERVICES.    In  the  event  that  the Utility  requests  and HydroCorp  consents  to 

perform additional work or services involving the consulting, management, operation, maintenance, and 
repair of the Utility’s water delivery system where such services or work exceeds or changes the Scope of 
Services  contemplated  under  this  Agreement,  HydroCorp  shall  be  provided  additional  compensation. 
Within thirty  (30) calendar days  from the date of notice of such additional work or services, the parties 
shall mutually agree upon an equitable sum for additional compensation. This amount shall be added to 
the monthly sum effective at the time of change  in scope.   Changes  in the Scope of Service  include, but 
are not  limited  to,  requests  for additional  service by  the Utility or additional costs  incurred  in meeting 
new or changed government regulations or reporting requirements. 

 
4.7 CLIENT CONFIDENTIALITY.  Disclosure of all communications between HydroCorp and the Utility regarding 

business practices and other methods and forms of doing business is subject to the provisions of Michigan 
Public Records  Law.     HydroCorp agrees  to make available  for  inspection and  copying all  records  in  its 
possession created, produced, collected or otherwise related to this Agreement to the same extent as  if 
the  records  were  maintained  by  the  Utility.  HydroCorp  expressly  acknowledges  and  agrees  that  its 
obligations concerning Public Records Law and compliance under this Agreement should not be limited by 
copyright, license, privacy and/or confidentiality except as authorized under the Public Records Law. 

 
4.8 ACCESSIBILITY.    Backflow  prevention  device  information  will  be  completed  in  full  only  when  the 

identifying information (i.e. data plate, brass tag, etc.) is accessible and visible from ground level or from a 
fixed platform/mezzanine. 

 
4.9 CONFINED SPACES. – HydroCorp personnel will not enter confined spaces. 
 

ARTICLE V.  Risk Management and General Provisions 
 

5.1  INFORMATION.    Both  Parties  to  this  Agreement  recognize  and  acknowledge  that  the  information 
presented to them is complete to the best of their knowledge, yet due to the inaccessible nature of water 
piping or  lack of access provided by property owner/water user,  complete accurate data  is not always 
available.   Cross‐connection  control  inspection  and  results  are documented  as of  a  specific date.   The 
property  owner  and/or  water  user  may  make  modifications  to  the  potable  water  system  after  the 
inspection date that may impact compliance with the program. 

 
5.2  INDEMNIFICATION.  HydroCorp agrees to and shall hold the Utility, its elected and appointed officers, and 

employees  harmless  from  any  liability  for  claims  or  damages  for  personal  injury  or  property  damage 
which  is  caused by or arises  from  the  sole negligence of HydroCorp  in  the performance of  its  services 
under  this  Agreement.    The  Utility  agrees  to  and  shall  hold  HydroCorp,  its  officers,  and  employees 
harmless from any liability for claims or damages for personal injury or property damage which is caused 
by, or arises from, the sole negligence of the Utility. In the event that both HydroCorp and the Utility  are 

City Council Packet 46 October 26, 2020



 

 
 
 Page 9 | City of Swartz Creek | October 8, 2020   

CORPORATE OFFICE 

5700 Crooks Road, Suite 100, Troy, MI 48098 
p  800.690.6651   248.250.5000   f  248.786.1789   hydrocorpinc.com 

found by a fact finder to be negligent and the negligence of both  is a proximate cause of such claim for 
damage,  then  in  such event each party  shall be  responsible  for  the portion of  the  liability equal  to  its 
comparative share of the total negligence. HydroCorp’ s liability to the Utility for any loss, damage, claim, 
or expense of any kind or nature caused directly or indirectly by the performance or non‐performance of 
obligations pursuant  to  this Agreement  shall be  limited  to  general money damages  in  an  amount not 
exceed or within the limits of the insurance coverage provided hereunder. HydroCorp shall in no event be 
liable for indirect or consequential damages, including but not limited to, loss of profits, loss of revenue, 
or loss of facilities, based upon contract, negligence, or any other cause of action. 

 
5.3   HYDROCORP INSURANCE. HydroCorp currently maintains the following insurance coverage’s and limits: 

                       Occurrence      Aggregate 
Comprehensive General Liability          $1 Million  $2 Million 
Excess Umbrella Liability            $5 Million  $5 Million 
Automobile Liability (Combined Single Limit)      $1 Million     
Worker’s Compensation/ Employer’s Liability      $1 Million   
Errors and Omissions            $2 Million  $2 Million 

   
Within  thirty  (30)  calendar  days  of  the  start  of  the  project,  HydroCorp  shall  furnish  the  Utility  with 
satisfactory proof of  such  insurance, and each policy will  require a 30‐day notice of  cancellation  to be 
given to the Utility while this Agreement is in effect.  The Utility shall be named as an additional insured 
according to its interest under the general liability policy during the term of this Agreement.  

 
5.4   UTILITY  INSURANCE.    The  Utility  will  maintain  liability  insurance  on  an  all  risk  basis  and  including 

extended  coverage  for matters  set  forth  in  this Agreement. The Utility and HydroCorp agree  that with 
respect to insurance coverage carried by either party in connection with the Facilities, such insurance will 
provide  for  the waiver by  the  insurance  carrier of  any  subrogation  rights  against  the Utility or  against 
HydroCorp as the case may be.  

 
5.5   RELATIONSHIP.   The  relationship of HydroCorp  to  the Utility  is  that of  independent contractor and not 

one of employment.   None of the employees or agents of HydroCorp shall be considered employees of 
the Utility.  For the purposes of all state, local, and federal laws and regulations, the Utility shall exercise 
primary management, and operational and financial decision‐making authority. 

 
5.6   ENTIRE AGREEMENT AMENDMENTS.  This Agreement contains the entire Agreement between the Utility 

and  HydroCorp,  and  supersedes  all  prior  or  contemporaneous  communications,  representations, 
understandings, or agreements.   This Agreement may be modified only by a written amendment signed 
by both parties.  

 
5.7   HEADINGS, ATTACHMENTS, AND EXHIBITS.   The heading  contained  in  this Agreement  is  for  reference 

only and shall not  in any way affect the meaning or  interpretation of this Agreement.   The Attachments 
and Exhibits to this Agreement shall be construed as integral parts of this Agreement. 

 
5.8   WAIVER.  The failure on the part of either party to enforce its rights as to any provision of this Agreement 

shall not be construed as a waiver of its rights to enforce such provisions in the future. 
 
5.9   ASSIGNMENT.  This Agreement shall not be assigned by either party without the prior written consent of 

the other unless such assignment shall be to the affiliate or successor of either party. 
 
5.10   FORCE MAJEURE. A party’s performance under this Agreement shall be excused if, and to the extent that, 

the party is unable to perform because of actions due to causes beyond its reasonable control such as, but 
not  limited  to, Acts of God,  the acts of  civil or military authority,  loss of potable water  sources, water 

City Council Packet 47 October 26, 2020



 Page 10 | City of Swartz Creek | October 8, 2020
CORPORATE OFFICE 

5700 Crooks Road, Suite 100, Troy, MI 48098 
p  800.690.6651   248.250.5000   f  248.786.1789   hydrocorpinc.com 

system  contamination,  floods,  quarantine  restrictions,  riot,  strikes,  commercial  impossibility,  fires, 
explosions,  bombing,  and  all  such  interruptions  of  business,  casualties,  events,  or  circumstances 
reasonably beyond the control of the party obligated to perform, whether such other causes are related 
or unrelated, similar or dissimilar, to any of the  foregoing.    In the event of any such  force majeure, the 
party unable to perform shall promptly notify the other party of the existence of such force majeure and 
shall be required to resume performance of its obligations under this Agreement upon the termination of 
the aforementioned force majeure.  

5.11   AUTHORITY TO CONTRACT.   Each party warrants and represents that  it has authority to enter  into this 
Agreement and to perform the obligations, including any payment obligations, under this Agreement. 

5.12   GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE.   This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with 
the  laws of  the State of Michigan,  regardless of  the  fact  that any of  the parties hereto may be or may 
become a resident of a different state or jurisdiction.  Any suit or action arising shall be filed in a court of 
competent  jurisdiction within the State of Michigan, venue by the presiding County.  The parties hereby 
consent to the personal jurisdiction of said court within the State of Michigan. 

.  
5.13   COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be 

deemed to be an original and all of which together shall be deemed to be one and the same instrument.  

5.14   NOTICES.   All notices,  requests, demands, payments and other  communications which are  required or 
may be given under  this Agreement shall be  in writing and shall be deemed  to have been duly given  if 
delivered  personally  or  sent  by  nationally  recognized  overnight  carrier,  or  mailed  by  certified  mail, 
postage prepaid, return receipt requested, as follows:  

If to HydroCorp:  If to Utility: 
HydroCorp 
c/o John Hudak 
5700 Crooks Road, Ste. 100
Troy, MI  48337 
(248) 250‐5005

Adam Zettel, AICP 
City Manager
City of Swartz Creek 
8083 Civic Center Drive 
Swartz Creek, MI  48473 

5.15   SEVERABILITY.  Should any part of this Agreement for any reason, be declared invalid or void, such 
declaration will not affect the remaining portion, which will remain in full force and effect as if the 
Agreement has been executed with the invalid portion eliminated. 

SIGNATURES 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have duly executed this Agreement effective as of the date first above 
written. 

City of Swartz Creek 

____________________________    ____________________________   
By:  By:  
Title:  Title:  

HydroCorp 

___________________________________ 
By: Paul M. Patterson 
Its: Senior Vice President  

City Council Packet 48 October 26, 2020



 Page 11 | City of Swartz Creek | October 8, 2020
CORPORATE OFFICE 

5700 Crooks Road, Suite 100, Troy, MI 48098 
p  800.690.6651   248.250.5000   f  248.786.1789   hydrocorpinc.com 

Qualifications/Experience 

HydroCorp™ is a professional service organization that specializes in Cross Connection Control Programs.  Cross 
Connection Control Program Management & Training is the main core and focus of our business.  We are 
committed to providing water utilities and local communities with a cost effective and professionally managed 
cross connection control program in order to assist in protecting the public water supply. 

 HydroCorp conducts over 30,000 Cross Connection Control Inspections annually.

 HydroCorp tracks and manages over 35,000+ backflow prevention assemblies for our Municipal client
base.

 Our highly trained staff works in an efficient manner in order to achieve maximum productivity and keep
program costs affordable.   We have a detailed system and process that each of our field inspectors
follow in order to meet productivity and quality assurance goals.

 Our municipal inspection team is committed to providing outstanding customer service to the water users
in each of the communities we serve.   We teach and train customer service skills in addition to the
technical skills since our team members act as representatives of the community that we service.

 Our municipal inspection team has attended training classes and received certification from the following
recognized Cross Connection Control Programs:  UF TREEO, UW‐Madison, and USC – Foundation for Cross
Connection Control and Hydraulic Research, American Backflow Prevention Association (ABPA), American
Society for Sanitary Engineering (ASSE).   HydroCorp recognizes the importance of Professional
Development and Learning. We invest heavily in internal and external training with our team members to
ensure that each Field Service and Administrative team member has the skills and abilities to meet the
needs of our clients.

 We have a trained administrative staff to handle client needs, water user questions and answer telephone
calls in a professional, timely and courtesy manner.  Our administrative staff can answer most technical
calls related to the cross connection control program and have attended basic cross connection control
training classes.

 HydroCorp currently serves over 200 communities in Michigan, Wisconsin, Maryland, Delaware, Virginia &
Florida. We still have our first customer!

 HydroCorp and its’ staff are active members in many water industry associations including:  National Rural
Water Association, State Rural Water Associations, National AWWA, State AWWA Groups, HydroCorp is
committed to assisting these organizations by providing training classes, seminars and assistance in the
area of Cross Connection Control.

 Several Fortune 500 companies have relied on HydroCorp to provide Cross Connection Control Surveys,
Program Management & Reporting to assist in meeting state/local regulations as well as internal company
guidelines.

City Council Packet 49 October 26, 2020



1 

Insert Opinion Date   

To the City Council   

We have audited the financial statements of the City of Swartz Creek (the “City”) as of and for the 
year ended June 30, 2020 and have issued our report thereon dated Insert Opinion Date . 
Professional standards require that we provide you with the following information related to our 
audit which is divided into the following sections: 

Section I – Required Communications with Those Charged With Governance 

Section II – Legislative and Informational Items 

Section I includes information that current auditing standards require independent auditors to 
communicate to those individuals charged with governance. We will report this information 
annually to the City Council of the City of Swartz Creek, Michigan. 

Section II contains updated legislative items that we believe will be of interest to you.  

We would like to take this opportunity to thank the City’s staff, especially Deanna, Adam and 
Connie, for the cooperation and courtesy extended to us during our audit. Their assistance and 
professionalism are invaluable. 

This report is intended solely for the use of the City Council and management of the City of Swartz 
Creek, Michigan and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these 
specified parties.  

We welcome any questions you may have regarding the following communications and we would 
be willing to discuss any of these or other questions that you might have at your convenience.  

Very truly yours, 

Plante & Moran, PLLC 
 
 
 
 
Pamela L Hill, CPA 
Partner  
 
 
 
Ashley Frase, CPA 
Manager 
 

DRAFT

City Council Packet 50 October 26, 2020



2 

 
 
Michael Machala, CPA 
Manager 
 

 

DRAFT

City Council Packet 51 October 26, 2020



3 

Section I - Required Communications with Those Charged With Governance  

Our Responsibility Under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards  

As stated in our engagement letter dated March 16, 2020, our responsibility, as described by 
professional standards, is to express an opinion about whether the financial statements prepared 
by management with your oversight are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity 
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Our audit of the financial statements does not 
relieve you or management of your responsibilities. Our responsibility is to plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement. 

As part of our audit, we considered the internal control of the City. Such considerations were 
solely for the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance 
concerning such internal control. 

We are responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our 
professional judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting 
process. However, we are not required to design procedures specifically to identify such matters. 

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit 

We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously communicated to 
you in our meeting about planning matters on August 12, 2020. 

Significant Audit Findings  

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In 
accordance with the terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the 
appropriateness of accounting policies and their application. The significant accounting policies 
used by the City are described in Note 1 to the financial statements.  

During the year, the City changed accounting policies related to the adoption of GASB Statement 
No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. Accordingly, the financial statements and related disclosures have 
been updated to reflect these changes.  

We noted no transactions entered into by the City during the year for which there is a lack of 
authoritative guidance or consensus.  

There are no significant transactions that have been recognized in the financial statements in a 
different period than when the transaction occurred.  

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management 
and are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and 
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because 
of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events 
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected.  

DRAFT

City Council Packet 52 October 26, 2020



Section I - Required Communications with Those Charged With Governance 
(Continued) 

4 

The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were the useful lives of capital 
assets, the net pension liability, and the other postemployment benefit liabilities. Management’s 
estimate of the useful lives of capital assets is based on management’s estimate of their lives. 
The estimate for the net pension liability was based on an actuarial valuation. The significant 
assumptions used in that calculation include future rate of return on investments, employee 
eligibility rates, life expectancies, and projected salary increases. The estimate for the other 
postemployment benefit obligation was base on the use of the GASB 75 actuarial valuation for 
calculating the net OPEB liability, required contribution using healthcare premiums, personnel 
information, and interest rates. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop 
the estimates of useful lives, net pension liability, and other postemployment benefits obligation 
in determining that they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.  

The disclosures in the financial statements are neutral, consistent, and clear.  

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and 
completing our audit.  

Disagreements with Management 

For the purpose of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as 
a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, 
that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to 
report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.  

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements  

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified 
during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level 
of management. We did not detect any misstatements as a result of audit procedures. 

Significant Findings or Issues  

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and 
auditing standards, business conditions affecting the organization, and business plans and 
strategies that may affect the risks of material misstatement with management each year prior to 
retention as the City’s auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our 
professional relationship and our responses were not a condition of our retention.  

Management Representations  

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the 
management representation letter dated Insert Opinion Date.  

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation 

DRAFT

City Council Packet 53 October 26, 2020



Section I - Required Communications with Those Charged With Governance 
(Continued) 

5 

involves application of an accounting principle to the City’s financial statements or a determination 
of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional 
standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has 
all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 

 

 

 

 

 DRAFT

City Council Packet 54 October 26, 2020



Section II – Legislative and Informational Items 
(Continued) 

6 

Section II – Legislative and Informational Items 

COVID-19 Resource Center  

Plante Moran has assembled a COVID-19 task force of leaders across the firm to monitor, 
address, and mitigate risks presented by the virus.  We understand the unique challenges our 
local governments are facing in providing essential services to protect communities during the 
COVID-19 crisis, while going forward, they face seemingly impossible choices around staffing, 
capital projects, pension obligations, and dozens of other items in the face of an uncertain revenue 
outlook. We’re sharing our insights within our government COVID-19 resource center 
https://www.plantemoran.com/explore-our-thinking/areas-of-focus/covid-19-government-
resource-center. We’ll keep you updated with relevant economic analysis, crisis management 
guidelines, notices of changing regulations, and more to keep your City running as smoothly as 
possible amidst uncertainty and unprecedented disruption. 

Have questions about the CARES Act? Submit them at 
https://www.plantemoran.com/campaigns/firm/cares-act by simply providing your contact 
information and agreeing to our terms and conditions, and an expert from our task force will 
contact you within the next 24 hours.  

Cybersecurity and Information Technology Controls  

Cyberattacks are on the rise across the globe, and the cost of these attacks is ever increasing. 
Because of these attacks, municipalities stand to lose reputation, their ability to operate efficiently, 
and proprietary information or assets. Communities can also potentially be subject to financial 
and legal liabilities. Managing this issue is especially challenging because even a municipality 
with a highly mature cybersecurity risk management program still has a residual risk that a 
material cybersecurity breach could occur and not be detected in a timely manner. We understand 
that the technology department continues to monitor and evaluate this risk, which are critical best 
practices.  Additionally, periodic assessments of the system in order to verify that the control 
environment is working as intended is a key part of measuring associated business risk.  We 
encourage administration and those charged with governance to work with the technology team 
on this very important topic. If we can be of assistance in the process, we would be happy to do 
so. 

Act 51 Report Due Date  

The Michigan Department of Transportation has granted an automatic 60-day extension to cities 
and villages that are required to file the Act 51 report. The updated policy will extend the Act 51 
report deadline to be due within six months of your fiscal year end date, which will align with the 
due date for the audited financial statements. For cities and villages whose most current fiscal 
year ends before July 1, the Act 51 report must be submitted by December 31 to be included in 
the snow payment calculation (if eligible and qualified).  

This extension does not apply to counties. Counties are required to submit the Act 51 report to 
MDOT by May 1 every year, regardless of the fiscal year end.  

Updated Uniform Chart of Accounts  

In April 2017, the State released an updated Uniform Chart of Accounts. Originally, local units of 
government were expected to comply with the changes beginning with June 30, 2018 year ends. 
However, the State has extended the deadline for compliance. On April 20, 2020, the State issued 
a memo which sets an implementation date for fiscal years ending October 31, 2022 and 

DRAFT

City Council Packet 55 October 26, 2020



Section II – Legislative and Informational Items 
(Continued) 

7 

thereafter. The State has committed to releasing various tools to help local units with 
implementation, including FAQs and clarification on what accounts should be used when 
implementing GASB 84.  A significant revision to the current version of the chart of accounts will 
be issued in the future which will incorporate feedback that Treasury has received.  This revision 
will include significant changes to the expenditure accounts 700-999 which will now mirror the old 
approach that allowed for various numbers within certain ranges.  Going forward, Treasury will 
issue the following 3 documents for any future revisions:  revised chart of accounts, a marked-up 
version of the chart showing the changes, a summary of the revisions report.    Local units can 
sign up for alerts at this link:  
https://public.govdelivery.com/accounts/MITREAS/subscriber/new?qsp=MITREAS_1  
 

Revenue Sharing  

Given the recent COVID-19 pandemic, there are anticipated declines in the State revenue sharing 
constitutional portion and unknown impact on the statutory portion as a result of COVID-19. 
Please refer to the Plante Moran COVID-19 resource center discussed above to keep updated 
on the economic analysis and other up to date information related to the pandemic. 

Legacy Cost Reporting  

Public Act 530 of 2016  

On December 31, 2016, the governor signed Public Act 530 of 2016, which amends Public Act 
314 of 1965, also known as Public Employee Retirement System Investment Act (PERSIA). This 
act was effective on March 29, 2017. 

Under the prior act, communities were required to publish a summary annual report setting forth 
key information related to pension and retiree healthcare plans. The amendment requires that 
this summary annual report also be submitted to the Michigan Department of Treasury within 30 
days of publication. 

In addition, for any system (either pension or retiree health care) that is not funded at a level of at 
least 60 percent, the community must now post a report to its website indicating steps that are 
being undertaken to address the liability. In addition, this report must be submitted to the 
Department of Treasury within a reasonable timeframe. 

The legislation calls for the Department of Treasury to accumulate all of the reports and publish 
a summary of funding levels throughout the state. 

Public Act 202 of 2017 

On January 5, 2018, the Michigan Department of Treasury released initial reporting requirements 
under Public Act 202 of 2017 (the “Act”), which was a primary component of the Act. These 
reporting requirements apply to all local units of government that offer or provide defined benefit 
pension and/or defined benefit OPEB retirement benefits.  

. Local units began reporting funded ratios and contributions in accordance with these uniform 
assumptions, starting with their fiscal year 2019 if their audited financial statements were based 
on an actuarial valuation issued after December 31, 2018. If their fiscal year 2019 audited financial 
statements were based on an actuarial valuation issued prior to December 31, 2018, the local 
units will begin reporting on these uniform assumptions starting with their fiscal year 2020.  

DRAFT

City Council Packet 56 October 26, 2020



Section II – Legislative and Informational Items 
(Continued) 

8 

On October 21, 2019, the Michigan Department of Treasury released the updated uniform 
assumptions to be used for fiscal year 2020. Beginning with fiscal year 2020 reporting, all local 
governments must utilize the updated fiscal year 2020 uniform assumptions. Each year moving 
forward, the annual uniform assumptions will be updated and are expected to be utilized within 
Form 5572, where indicated, for that fiscal year. Local governments may utilize roll-forward 
procedures in non-valuation years utilizing any updates to the uniform assumptions to calculate 
the data.  

This means that the local unit may potentially need three calculations: a funding valuation (if the 
local unit chooses to have different assumptions for funding purposes), a valuation that complies 
with GAAP to be used for financial statement reporting, and a calculation that complies with the 
State’s new uniform assumptions.  

The releases by the Department of Treasury includes the letter titled “Public Act 202: Selection of 
the Uniform Assumptions” and “Public Act 202: Selection of the Uniform Assumptions for Fiscal 
Year 2020”, Numbered Letter 2018-1, Form 5572, detailed instructions for completion of Form 
5572, and a listing of frequently asked questions. All documents can be located at 
http://www.michigan.gov/treasury/0,4679,7-121-1751_51556_84499---,00.html. 

Form 5572 is due annually for both pension and OPEB plans provided by an employer no later 
than six months after the end of your fiscal year. 

In addition to submitting this new form to the Department of Treasury, a local unit must also post 
this information on its website, or in a public place if the local unit does not have a website. The 
governing body of a local unit will also need to receive a copy of this form, in accordance with the 
Act, but the Act does not require approval by the governing body before submission to the 
Treasury. 

Public Act 202 defines that a local unit of government is in “underfunded status” if any of the 
following apply: 

1. OPEB - Total plan assets are less than 40 percent of total plan liabilities according to the most 
recent annual report, and, for primary units of government*, the annual required contribution 
for all of the retirement health systems of the local unit is greater than 12 percent of the local 
unit of government’s governmental funds operations revenue. 

2. Retirement Pension Plans - Total plan assets are less than 60 percent of plan total liabilities 
according to the most recent annual report, and, for primary units of government, the annual 
required contribution for all of the retirement pension systems of the local unit is greater than 
10 percent of the local unit of government’s governmental funds operations revenue. 

*Primary units of government are cities, villages, townships, and counties. 

If, after submission of Form 5572, the Treasury determines your community to have underfunded 
status, you will have the opportunity to file a “waiver” under Section 6 of the Act. The waiver needs 
to provide a plan for how the underfunding is being addressed. This waiver will then be submitted 
to the Treasury. 

In the event that a local unit has underfunded plans and does not submit a waiver or the waiver 
is not approved, the Treasury will perform an internal review. The local unit will also need to submit 
a corrective action plan to the newly created Municipal Stability Board (under Section 7 of the 
Act). The local unit will be responsible for creating the corrective action plan. 

DRAFT

City Council Packet 57 October 26, 2020



Section II – Legislative and Informational Items 
(Continued) 

9 

For governments with OPEB plans, Section 4(l)(a)(i)(ii) of Public Act 202 of 2017 requires the 
local unit to pay retiree insurance premiums for the year, as well as the normal costs for the new 
employees hired after June 30, 2018. The actuary will likely need to calculate this number in order 
for governments to comply. In addition, if your community must essentially prefund this additional 
cost, those communities without a qualifying OPEB trust will need to consider where these 
contributions will go. 

Questions should be directed via email to the Treasury offices at LocalRetirementReporting 
@michigan.gov or by visiting their website at www.Michigan.gov/LocalRetirementReporting. 

Numbered Letter 2018-3  

On March 13, 2020, Treasury issued Numbered Letter 2018-3 (Revised) as a revision to 
Numbered Letter 2018-3 that was first issued in September 2018. This revised numbered letter 
provides additional clarity and guidance for compliance with Public Act 202 related to the 
calculation and reporting of the actuarial determined contribution (ADC) for Other 
Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) Systems. The revision emphasized two key points: 

1. The ADC, regardless of funding policy, must be calculated as the normal cost plus the 
amortization of the unfunded liability 

2. The ADC, calculated in accordance with the act, must be reported in the audited financial 
statements. Note that OPEB plans that are not administrated through a trust are not 
required by GAAP to disclose the ADC in the RSI section of the audited financial 
statements, but those plans should disclose this information in the footnotes to the  
financial statements as required by this revised numbered letter. 

Failure to calculate the ADC in compliance with this Numbered Letter 2018-3 (Revised) will be 
considered statutory noncompliance and shall be reported in the notes to the financial statements 
and will results in an auditor finding for statutory noncompliance. Failure to report a compliance 
ADC in audited financial statements may result in the rejection of Form 5572 submissions and 
noncompliance with the Act and/or rejection of the local government’s audited financial 
statements. 

DRAFT

City Council Packet 58 October 26, 2020



Section II – Legislative and Informational Items 
(Continued) 

10 

Upcoming Accounting Standards Requiring Preparation  

GASB Statement No. 95 – Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative 
Guidance  

This new pronouncement was adopted in May 2020 and is effective immediately. This statement 
postpones the effective dates of the following pronouncements and implementation guides by one 
year: 

 Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations 
 Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities 
 Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt 
 Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction 

Period 
 Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests 
 Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations 
 Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020 
 Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates 
 Implementation Guide No. 2017-3, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 

Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (and Certain Issues Related to OPEB 
Plan Reporting) 

 Implementation Guide No. 2018-1, Implementation Guidance Update - 2018 
 Implementation Guide No. 2019-1, Implementation Guidance Update - 2019 
 Implementation Guide No. 2019-2, Fiduciary Activities 

The effective dates of the following pronouncement and implementation guide are postponed by 
18 months: 

 Statement No. 87, Leases 
 Implementation Guide No. 2019-3, Leases 

 
GASB Statement No. 87 - Leases 

This new accounting pronouncement will be effective for reporting periods beginning after 
December 15, 2019 (June 15, 2021 after extension within GASB Statement No. 95). This 
statement requires recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously 
were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of 
resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. It establishes a single model for lease 
accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an 
underlying asset. Under this statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an 
intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a 
deferred inflow of resources.  

We recommend beginning to accumulate information related to all significant lease agreements 
now in order to more efficiently implement this new standard once it becomes effective.  

Plante Moran will be providing trainings and other resources to our clients over the coming months 
in order to help prepare for the implementation of all these new standards. In the interim, please 
reach out to your engagement team for assistance in getting started. 

DRAFT

City Council Packet 59 October 26, 2020



Section II – Legislative and Informational Items 
(Continued) 

11 

GASB Statement No. 89 - Interest Incurred During Construction  

This new accounting pronouncement will be effective for reporting periods beginning after 
December 15, 2019 (December 15, 2020 after extension within GASB Statement No. 95). This 
statement eliminates capitalized interest and instead requires all interest expense, including the 
portion incurred during construction of a capital asset, to be expensed. Early adoption is 
encouraged.  

GASB Statement No. 92 – Omnibus 2020  

This new accounting pronouncement has various effective dates that were postponed by one year 
after extension within GASB Statement No. 95. This statement addresses eight unrelated practice 
issues and technical inconsistencies in authoritative literature. The standard addresses leases, 
intra-entity transfers of assets, postemployment benefits, government acquisitions, risk financing 
and insurance-related activities of public entity risk pools, fair value measurements, and derivative 
instruments. DRAFT

City Council Packet 60 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 61 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 62 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 63 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 64 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 65 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 66 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 67 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 68 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 69 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 70 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 71 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 72 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 73 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 74 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 75 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 76 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 77 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 78 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 79 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 80 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 81 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 82 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 83 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 84 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 85 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 86 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 87 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 88 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 89 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 90 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 91 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 92 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 93 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 94 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 95 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 96 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 97 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 98 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 99 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 100 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 101 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 102 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 103 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 104 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 105 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 106 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 107 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 108 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 109 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 110 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 111 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 112 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 113 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 114 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 115 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 116 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 117 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 118 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 119 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 120 October 26, 2020



City Council Packet 121 October 26, 2020


	2020-10-26 Council Mtg Template
	TO:  Honorable Mayor, Mayor Pro-Tem & Council Members
	ROUTINE BUSINESS – REVISITED ISSUES / PROJECTS

	2020-10-12 October 12 Council Minutes
	Council Budget Report September 2020
	SwartzCreek_20201008
	TCWG - Combined Letter AU 260 - 265
	20201023095058



